EDGAR access

ity EDGAROnlime™

GLOBAL GOLD CORP

FORM 10-Q

(Quarterly Report)

Filed 08/20/12 for the Period Ending 06/30/12

Address

Telephone
CIK
Symbol
SIC Code
Industry
Sector
Fiscal Year

555 THEODORE FREMD AVENUE
SUITE C208

RYE, NY 10580

914-925-0020

0000319671

GBGD

1040 - Gold And Silver Ores

Gold & Silver

Basic Materials

12/31

http://pro.edgar-online.com
© Copyright 2012, EDGAR Online, Inc. All Rights Reserved.

Distribution and use of this document restricted under EDGAR Online, Inc. Terms of Use.



UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549
FORM 10-Q
(Mark One)
X QUARTERLY REPORT UNDER SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the quarterly period ended June 30, 2012

O  TRANSITION REPORT UNDER SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE EXCHANGE ACT

For the transition period from to

Commission file number 02-69494

GLOBAL GOLD CORPORATION

(Exact name of small business issuer in its charter

DELAWARE 13-3025550
(State or other jurisdiction of (IRS Employer
incorporation or organization) Identification No.)

555 Theodore Fremd Avenue, Rye, NY 10580
(Address of principal executive offices)

(914) 9250020

(Issuer's telephone number)

Not applicable
(Former name, former address and former fiscal,yeehanged

since last report)

Indicate by check mark whether the registranti{éifall reports required to be filed by Sectiondr3L5(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for sudrtsh period that the registrant was requiredltoduch reports), and (2) has been subject to
such filing requirements for the past 90 days.

Yes NoO

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant lidsnitted electronically and posted on its corpo¥dib site, if any, every Interactive Data F
required to be submitted and posted pursuant te Bb of Regulation S-T (8232.405 of this chapderjng the preceding 12 months (or for
such shorter period that the registrant was reduoesubmit and post such files). YEBL No[O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantlarge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, @accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting
company. See definitions of “large accelerattst,fi “accelerated filer” and “smaller reportingropany” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.

Large accelerated fileld Accelerated filer O
Non-accelerated filer O (Do not check if smaller reporting Smaller reporting company
company)
Indicate by check mark whether the registrantshell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of thelaxge Act). Yesd No[X]

As of August 17, 2012 there were 86,542,975 shafrése issuer's Common Stock outstanding.







TABLE OF CONTENTS

PART | FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Item 1. Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of June 30, 2018saofiDecember 31, 2011 (Audited)
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the threeths and six months ended June 30, 2012 and3yr®11 and
for the exploration stage period from January B5l@nception) through June 30, 2012
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the timeeths and six months ended June 30, 2012 and3lyr#911 and
for the exploration stage period from January B5l@nception) through June 30, 2012
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Unadp
Item 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis or Plan ofr@joa
Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About MaArRisk
Item 4. Controls and Procedures
PART Il OTHER INFORMATION
Item 1. Legal Proceedings
Iltem 1A. Risk Factors
Item 2. Unregistered Sale of Equity Securities and Userot&eds
Item 3. Defaults Upon Senior Securities
Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures
Item 5. Other Information
Item 6. Exhibits
SIGNATURES

CERTIFICATIONS

26

28

29

29

31

31

31

31

31

32

37




PART | - FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Item 1. Financial Statements.
GLOBAL GOLD CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

(An Exploration Stage Company)
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

June 30, December 31,
2012 2011
(Unaudited) (Audited)
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash $ 152,71 $ 29,13:
Inventories 635,27: 758,43!
Tax refunds receivable 108,55( 109,13¢
Prepaid expenses 658 7,42¢
Receivable from sale, net of impairment of $3,280,and $3,950,000 respectively - 50,00(
Other current assets 59,91/ 63,96¢
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 957,10¢ 1,018,09:
LICENSES, net of accumulated amortization of $2,290 and $2,140,971, respectively 919,80° 1,068,96!
DEPOSITS ON CONTRACTS AND EQUIPMENT 398,61 460,04
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, net of accumulategpdeciation of $2,757,805 and
$2,812,304, respectively 1,122,10! 1,174,88!
$ 3,397,633 $ 3,721,98:
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' DEFICIT
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 3,163,05 $ 2,674,45!
Wages payable 795,30¢ 741,93.
Employee loans 170,10: 256,45¢
Advance from customer 87,02( 87,02(
Minority interest in joint venture pending 5,000,00! 5,000,00!
Secured line of credit - short term portion 684,00( 684,00(
Convertible note payable 1,549,32. -
Current portion of note payable to Directors 66,50( -
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 11,515,31 9,443,86!
SECURED LINE OF CREDIT - LONG TERM PORTION 960,69° 1,422,17:
TOTAL LIABILITIES 12,476,00 10,866,04
STOCKHOLDERS' DEFICIT:
Common stock $0.001 par, 100,000,000 shares am#thr84,105,475 at June 30, 2012 and
December 31, 2011, shares issued and outstanding 84,10¢ 83,80¢
Additional paid-in-capital 37,911,88. 37,819,08.
Accumulated deficit prior to development stage (2,907,64)) (2,907,64))
Deficit accumulated during the development stage (46,691,70) (44,180,17)
Accumulated other comprehensive income 2,524,98 2,040,87.
TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS' DEFICIT (9,078,37) (7,144,061
$ 3,397,63. $ 3,721,98

The accompanying notes are an integral part okthesudited consolidated financial statements






GLOBAL GOLD CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
(An Exploration Stage Company)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHEN SIVE LOSS

REVENUES
COST OF GOODS SOLD
GROSS PROFIT

(INCOME)/EXPENSES:
General and administrative
Mining and exploration costs
Amortization and depreciation
Write-off on investment

Gain on sale of investment
Gain from investment in joint ventures
Interest expense

Bad debt expense

Loss on foreign exchange

Gain on extinguishment of debt
Interest income

TOTAL EXPENSES
Loss from Continuing Operations

Discontinued Operations:
Loss from discontinued operations
Loss on disposal of discontinued
operations

Net Loss Applicable to Commc
Shareholders

Foreign currency translation adjustment
Unrealized gain on investments

Comprehensive Net Loss

NET LOSS PER SHARI- BASIC AND
DILUTED

WEIGHTED AVERAGE SHARES
OUTSTANDING - BASIC AND
DILUTED

The accompanying notes are an integral part oethesaudited consolidated financial statements

Cumulative
amount
from
Three Months Ended Six Months Ended January 1, 1995
June 30, June 30, through
2012 2011 2012 2011 June 30, 2012
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)

> - $ - - 632,85

- - - - 224.,24°

- - - - 408,60
748,52! 932,46! 2,217,37. 1,350,27. 26,952,70
102,68: 404,94¢ 701,51: 476,57¢ 17,221,28
142,41! 193,68( 289,95 429,02 6,134,49:
- - - - 176,60"
(700,000 - (850,00() - (3,581,79)
- - = - (2,373,70)

71,527 109,97 152,98: 224,31t 2,256,26!

- - - - 151,25(

- - - - 193,85:

- - - - (289,76¢)

(139 (379 (297) (40€) (365,109
365,00 1,640,69: 2,511,52i 2,479,78! 46,476,08
(365,009 (1,640,69) (2,511,52) (2,479,78) (46,067,48)
- - - - 386,41:

- - - - 237,80t
(365,009 (1,640,69) (2,511,52) (2,479,78) (46,691,70)
(103,26 (104,94)) 484,11( (62,84 2,171,51
- - - - 353,47!
(468,27¢) (1,745,63) $ (2,027,41) (2,542,62) $  (44,166,71)

(0.00) (0.02) $ (0.03) (0.09)
84,039,54 79,613,00 83,922,50 79,402,90






GLOBAL GOLD CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
(An Exploration Stage Enterprise)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Cumulative amount

from
January 1, 2012 January 1, 2011 January 1, 1995
through through through
June 30, 2012 June 30, 2011 June 30, 201
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net loss $ (2,511,52) $ (2,479,78) $ (46,691,70)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash usegerating activities:
Amortization of unearned compensation 28,37¢ 28,37¢ 3,933,09!
Stock option expense 4,72¢ 4,72¢ 1,201,16:
Amortization expense 149,15¢ 190,73° 3,056,33.
Depreciation expense 140,79¢ 238,29( 3,304,071
Stock based compensation 60,00( 240,00( 484,21
Write-off of investment - - 176,60!
Loss on disposal of discontinued operations - - 237,80t
Gain from investment in joint ventures - - (2,323,70)
Gain on extinguishment of debt - - (289,76¢)
Gain on sale of investments - - (2,731,79)
Bad debt expense - - 151,25(
Other non-cash expenses - - 155,56°
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Other current and non current assets 245,99¢ (256,19 (1,533,32)
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 384,61¢ (289,22%) 3,739,29
Accrued interest 17,62¢ 25,75¢ 1,137,90!
Wages payable 53,37 41,02: 795,30¢
NET CASH FLOWS USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES (1,426,85) (2,256,29) (35,197,66)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (220,49) (3,15¢) (4,994,36)
Proceeds from sale of mining interest - 750,00( 3,891,15!
Proceeds from sale of Tamaya Common Stock - - 4,957,73
Proceeds from sale of investment in common stockterlite Gold - - 246,76
Proceeds from the sale of minority interest inf®@nture pending - 2,047,461 5,000,001
Investment in joint ventures - - (260,00()
Investment in mining licenses - - (5,756,10)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY/(USED) IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (220,49) 2,794,30. 3,085,191
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Net proceeds from private placement offering - - 18,155,10.
Repurchase of common stock - - (25,000
Advance from customer - - 87,02(
Proceeds from secured line of credit - - 3,189,37:
Repayment of secured line of credit (309,53() (244,44)) (1,511,913
Proceeds from convertible note payable 1,549,32. - 1,549,32.
Note payable to Directors 66,50( (23,500 4,442,20:
Warrants exercised - 25,00( 2,632,25I
NET CASH FLOWS PROVIDED BY/(USED) IN FINANCING ACMITIES 1,306,29. (242,94 28,518,35
EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE ON CASH 464,63¢ 25,29¢ 3,735,47:
NET INCREASE IN CASF 123,58( 320,36: 141,36(
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - beginning of period 29,13: 14,08t 11,35:
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - end of period $ 152,71  $ 334,44¢ $ 152,71:
SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Income taxes paid $ - $ - $ 2,68:
Interest paid $ 132,03¢ $ 197,39¢ $ 763,54(
Noncash Transaction
Stock issued for deferred compensation $ - $ - $ 3,871,21
Stock forfeited for deferred compensation $ - $ - $ 742,50(

Stock issued for mine acquisition $ - 3 - $ 1,227,501




Stock issued for notes payable

Stock issued for wages payable

Stock cancelled for receivable settlement
Mine acquisition costs in accounts payables

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheaudited consolidated financial statements

5

$ - $ - 3 5,337,64:
$ -3 300,000 $ 300,00(
$ -3 - 3 77,91
$ -3 - 3 50,69;




GLOBAL GOLD CORPORATION
(An Exploration Stage Company)

Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statemest
June 30, 2012
1. ORGANIZATION, DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS, AND BASFEOR PRESENTATION

The accompanying consolidated financial statememsent the available exploration stage activititermation of the Company from January
1, 1995, the period commencing the Company's opesaas Global Gold Corporation (the "Company"@tdbal Gold") and Subsidiaries,
through June 30, 2012.

The accompanying consolidated financial statemargsinaudited. In the opinion of management, aleasary adjustments (which include only
normal recurring adjustments) have been made septdairly the financial position, results of ogéons and cash flows for the periods
presented. Certain information and footnote disglesiormally included in financial statements prepan accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United Stafe&merica have been condensed or omitted. HowelrerCompany believes that the
disclosures are adequate to make the informatiesemted not misleading. These consolidated finbsizitements should be read in conjunction
with the consolidated financial statements andsttereto included in the December 31, 2011 ammyairt on Form 10-K. The results of
operations for the three month period ended Jun@@I2 are not necessarily indicative of the opegatesults to be expected for the full year
ended December 31, 2012. The Company operatesiimgle segment of activity, namely the acquisitbrzertain mineral property, mining
rights, and their subsequent development.

The consolidated financial statements at June @02 2and for the period then ended were prepadhaag that the Company would continue
as a going concern. Since its inception, the Compam exploration stage company, has generateduesef $632,854 (other than interest
income, the proceeds from the sales of interegtsining ventures, and the sale of common stock arketable securities) while incurring
operating losses in excess of $46 million. Managerhas held discussions with additional investoid iastitutions interested in financing the
Company's projects. However, there is no assurdratehe Company will obtain the financing thateiguires or will achieve profitable
operations. The Company is expected to incur amwditilosses for the near term until such time aitld derive substantial revenues from the
Chilean and Armenian mining interests acquiredtloy bther future projects in Armenia or Chile. Shematters raised substantial doubt about
the Company's ability to continue as a going camc€he accompanying consolidated financial statésneere prepared on a going concern
basis, which contemplated the realization of assedissatisfaction of liabilities in the normal cseirof business. The accompanying consolidated
financial statements at June 30, 2012 and for én@@ then ended did not include any adjustmerasrtlight be necessary should the Company
be unable to continue as a going concern.

Global Gold is currently in the exploration staties engaged in exploration for, and developmemt mining of, gold, silver, and other minerals
in Armenia, Canada and Chile. From 2003 until J8@e2011, the Company's headquarters were locat@ddenwich, Connecticut and as of
April 1, 2011 the Company’s headquarters are in, R Its subsidiaries maintain offices and stafi¥erevan, Armenia, and Santiago, Chile.
The Company was incorporated as Triad Energy Catmor in the State of Delaware on February 21, 1@8{) as further described below,
conducted other business prior to January 1, 19@BEng 1995, the Company changed its name fromdTEaergy Corporation to Global Gold
Corporation to pursue certain gold and copper ngimights in the former Soviet Republics of Armearad Georgia. The Company has not
established proven and probable reserves, in aacoedwith SEC Industry Guide 7, at any of its prips. The Company's stock is publicly
traded. The Company employs approximately 100 geglobally on a year round basis and an additidfalpeople on a seasonal basis.

In Armenia, the Company’s focus is on the explamtidevelopment and production of gold at the Toukhuk property in the North Central
Armenian Belt, the exploration and developmentef Marjan and an expanded Marjan North properthénSouth. In addition, the Company is
exploring and developing other sites in Armenialuding the Getik property. The Company also hotdalty and participation rights in other
locations in the country through affiliates and sidiaries.

In Chile, the Company is engaged in identifyingdgekploration and production opportunities and &&®nus interest tied to gold productio
the Pureo property.




In Canada, the Company has engaged in uranium rajolo activities in the provinces of Newfoundlaemb Labrador, but has phased out this
activity, retaining a royalty interest in the Coahe Pond property in Newfoundland.

The Company also assesses exploration and produgiportunities in other countries.
The subsidiaries of the Company are as follows:

On January 24, 2003, the Company formed Globall@ and Global Plata LLC, as wholly owned subsittgyin the State of Delaware. Tht
companies were formed to be equal joint owners®ffidean limited liability company, Minera Globahile Limitada ("Minera Global"), forme
as of May 6, 2003, for the purpose of conductingrations in Chile. On December 2, 2011, the Comsaid these subsidiaries to Amarant
Mining Ltd. (“Amarant”).

On August 18, 2003, the Company formed Global Gutdenia LLC ("GGA"), as a wholly owned subsidiawhich in turn formed Global Go
Mining, LLC ("GGM"), as a wholly owned subsidiafyoth in the State of Delaware. GGM was qualifiedddousiness as a branch operation in
Armenia and owns assets, royalty and participdtiterests, as well as shares of operating compamiggmenia.

On December 21, 2003, GGM acquired 100% of the Ararelimited liability company SHA, LLC (renameddblal Gold Hankavan, LLC
("GGH") as of July 21, 2006), which held the licerie the Hankavan and Marjan properties in Arme@a. December 18, 2009, the Company
entered into an agreement with Caldera Resoureeg‘lDaldera”) outlining the terms of a joint venélon the Company’s Marjan property in
Armenia (“Marjan JV”). On March 12, 2010, GGH tsd@rred the rights, title and interest for the Marproperty to Marjan Mining Company, a
limited liability company incorporated under thevkaof the Republic of Armenia (“Marjan RA”) whick a wholly owned subsidiary of GGM.
On October 7, 2010, the Company terminated thedaly/. The Armenian Court of Cassation in a finah-appealable decision, issued and
effective February 8, 2012, ruled that the regigtraand assumption of control by Caldera througitateral charter changes of the Marjan Mine
and Marjan Mining Company, LLC were illegal andttb@0% ownership rests fully with GGM. On March 2912, Justice Herman Cahn, who
was appointed by United States District Court Judgherstein as the sole arbitrator in an Ameriéabitration Association arbitration between
the Company and Caldera, ruled in the Company’srfam the issue of the J¥termination ordering that the Marjan propertylb8% owned b
the Company effective April 29, 2012, and latereexted to be effective May 22, 2012. See Legaldé&oings for more information on the
Marjan JV.

On August 1, 2005, GGM acquired 51% of the Armettiiited liability company Mego-Gold, LLC, which the licensee for the Toukhmanuk
mining property and seven surrounding exploratitess On August 2, 2006, GGM acquired the remgidii% interest of Mego-Gold, LLC,
leaving GGM as the owner of 100% of Mego-Gold, LLEee Agreements for more information on Mego-Gbld.

On January 31, 2006, GGM closed a transaction gaise 80% of the Armenian company, Athelea InvesiisieCJSC (renamed "Getik Mini
Company, LLC") and its approximately 27 squarerkidder Getik gold/uranium exploration license arethe northeast Geghargunik provinc
Armenia. As of May 30, 2007, GGM acquired the rarimg 20% interest in Getik Mining Company, LLCaléng GGM as the owner of 10(
of Getik Mining Company, LLC. See Agreements farminformation on Getik Mining Company, LLC.

On January 5, 2007, the Company formed Global Goéhium, LLC ("Global Gold Uranium"), as a whollyvoed subsidiary, in the State of
Delaware, to operate the Company's uranium expdoraictivities in Canada.

On August 9, 2007 and August 19, 2007, the Comptiangugh Minera Global, entered agreements to fajjoint venture and on October 29,
2007, the Company closed its joint venture agre¢méh members of the Quijano family (“Quijano”) lyhich Minera Global assumed a 51%
interest in the placer and hard rock gold Madr®ates and Pureo properties in south central Chiggyfvaldivia. The name of the joint venture
company was Compania Minera Global Gold Valdivia.®l. (“Global Gold Valdivia” or “GGV”). On August4, 2009, the Company amended
the above agreement whereby Global Gold Valdivizabee wholly owned by the Company and retained th@yPureo Claims Block
(approximately 8,200 hectares), transferring theliddde Dios claims block to the sole ownership tmhers of the Quijano family. On
October 27, 2010, the Company entered into an aggeewith Conventus Ltd. a BVI corporation (“Contuesi) for the sale of 100% interest in
GGV which was amended (with Conventus and Amaramt)was closed on December 2, 2011. See Agreeffioem®re information on GGV.




On September 23, 2011 “Global Gold ConsolidatecdbRe®s Limited” was incorporated in Jersey as a Stbsidiary of the Company pursuant
to the April 27, 2011 Joint Venture Agreement witbnsolidated Resources which became defunct apiif 2v, 2012. See Agreements
Section for more information on Consolidated Resesiagreements.

On November 8, 2011 “GGCR Mining, LLC” was formedDelaware as a 100%, wholly owned, subsidiary lob& Gold Consolidated
Resources Limited.

The accompanying consolidated financial statememsent the available exploration stage activitiéemation of the Company from January
1, 1995, the period commencing the Company's opesaas Global Gold Corporation and Subsidiarienugh June 30, 2012.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Cash and cash equivalemsist of all cash balances and highly lignigestments with a remaining maturity of
three months or less when purchased and are caitrfad value.

Use of Estimates - The preparation of financiatlesteents in conformity with accounting principlesigeally accepted in the United States of
America requires management to make estimatessmuirgptions that affect the reported amounts oftassel liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amountsveimges and expenses during the reporting perioaiaAoesults could differ from those
estimates.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments - The Compadg@ed FASB ASC 820-Fair Value Measurements andl@ssres, for assets and liabilities
measured at fair value on a recurring basis. ASCe&ablishes a common definition for fair valudéoapplied to existing generally accepted
accounting principles that require the use ofv¥alue measurements establishes a framework foruriagdair value and expands disclosure
about such fair value measurements. The adoptiérs@f 820 did not have an impact on the Companyaricial position or operating results,
but did expand certain disclosures.

ASC 820 defines fair value as the price that wdiddeceived to sell an asset or paid to transfiebdity in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. Axtditiy, ASC 820 requires the use of valuation tégpines that maximize the use of observable
inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inpthese inputs are prioritized below:

Level 1: Observable inputs such as quoted marnketpin active markets for identical assets dyiliiges

Level 2: Observable market-based inputs obsaovable inputs that are corroborated by markist da

Level 3: Unobservable inputs for which thexditile or no market data, which require the ukthe reporting entity’s own
assumptions.

The Company did not have any Level 2 or Level 2tsar liabilities as of June 30, 2012 and June&6Q]1.

The Company discloses the estimated fair valuealfdinancial instruments for which it is practiida to estimate fair value. As of June 30, 2012
and June 30, 2011, the fair value short-term fir@miestruments including cash, receivables, armbants payable and accrued expenses,
approximates book value due to their short-ternatiom.

Cash and cash equivalents include money marketiseswand commercial paper that are considerdzbthbighly liquid and easily tradable.
These securities are valued using inputs obsenialaletive markets for identical securities andtherefore classified as Level 1 within the fair
value hierarchy.

In addition, the Financial Accounting Standards BIGAFASB”) issued, “The Fair Value Option for Finagial Assets and Financial Liabilities,”
effective for January 1, 2008. This guidance expaportunities to use fair value measurementsmantial reporting and permits entities to
choose to measure many financial instruments aridigether items at fair value. The Company ditielect the fair value option for any of its
qualifying financial instruments.




Inventories - Inventories consists of the followeitgJune 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011:

June 30, December 31,
2012 2011
Ore $ 531,40¢ $ 537,94¢
Concentrate 11,34: 7,714
Materials, supplies and other 92,52 212,77!
Total Inventories $ 635,27. $ 758,43!

Ore inventories consist of unprocessed ore at tukfimanuk mining site in Armenia. The unprocessedand concentrate are stated at the
lower of cost or market.

Deposits on Contracts and Equipment - The Compasyntade several deposits for purchases, the nyapdnithich is for the potential
acquisition of new properties, and the remaindette purchase of mining equipment.

Tax Refunds Receivable - The Company is subjedtoe Added Tax ("VAT tax") on all expendituresAnmenia at the rate of 20%. The
Company is entitled to a credit against this taxaas any sales on which it collects VAT tax. Thar@any is carrying a tax refund receivable
based on the value of its in-process inventory witintends on selling in the next twelve montiswhich time they will collect 20% VAT tax
from the purchaser which the Company will be esditto keep and apply against its credit.

Net Loss Per Shal- Basic net loss per share is based on the weightechge number of common and common equivalenestoatstanding.
Potential common shares includable in the compartadf fully diluted per share results are not pnése in the consolidated financial statements
as their effect would be anti-dilutive. The tataimber of warrants plus options that are exercessablJune 30, 2012 and June 30, 2011 was
4,606,667 and 4,900,417, respectively.

Stock Based Compensation - The Company perioditsglyes shares of common stock for services redderor financing costs. Such shares
are valued based on the market price on the triaratate. The Company periodically issues stquioos and warrants to employees and non-
employees in non-capital raising transactions éovises and for financing costs.

The Company accounts for the grant of stock andamés awards in accordance with ASC Topic 718, Gamption — Stock Compensation
(ASC 718). ASC 718 requires companies to recognitee statement of operations the grant-datevidire of warrants and stock options and
other equity based compensation.

The Black-Scholes option valuation model was deyeibfor use in estimating the fair value of tradetions that have no vesting restrictions
and are fully transferable. In addition, optionuation models require the input of highly subjeetassumptions including the expected stock
price volatility.

For the six months ended June 30, 2012 and 2011gs®and loss per share include the actual dextuftir stock-based compensation expense.
The total stock-based compensation expense fa@ith®onths ended June 30, 2012 and 2011 was $9arid$273,102, respectively. The
expense for stock-based compensation is a nonesgeEnse item.

Comprehensive Income - The Company has adopted A& 220, “Comprehensive Income.” Comprehensia®ine is comprised of net
income (loss) and all changes to stockholdersteddeficit), except those related to investmentstockholders, changes in paid-in capital and
distribution to owners.




The following table summarizes the computation®neding net loss to comprehensive loss for thensbnths ended June 30, 2012 and 2011.

Six Months Ending June 30,

2012 2011
Net loss $ (2,511,52) $ (2,479,78)
Unrealized loss arising during year $ 484,11( $ (62,84
Comprehensive loss $ (2,027,41) $ (2,542,62)

Income Taxes - Income taxes are accounted fordardance with the provisions of FASB ASC 740, Aaating for Income Taxes. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are recognized for the utax consequences attributable to differencesdsivthe financial statement carrying amount
existing assets and liabilities and their respectax bases. Deferred tax assets and liabilitesrmasured using enacted tax rates expected to
apply to taxable income in the years in which thieseporary differences are expected to be recovaredttled. The effect on deferred tax as
and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recagdiin income in the period that includes the enaat date. Valuation allowances are establis
when necessary, to reduce deferred tax assets tnibunts expected to be realized.

Acquisition, Exploration and Development Costs fibfial property acquisition costs are capitalizedidifionally, mine development costs
incurred either to develop new ore deposits andtrocting new facilities are capitalized until opgwns commence. All such capitalized costs
are amortized using a straight-line basis on aegdrgm 1-10 years, based on the minimum origirea@rse term at acquisition, but do not exceed
the useful life of the capitalized costs. Upon cwencial development of an ore body, the applicablgtalized costs would then be amortized
using the units-oproduction method. Exploration costs, costs irmdito maintain current production or to maintaiseds on a standby basis
charged to operations. Costs of abandoned praeetsharged to operations upon abandonment. ©heény evaluates, at least quarterly, the
carrying value of capitalized mining costs andtedgproperty, plant and equipment costs, if angdi@rmine if these costs are in excess of their
net realizable value and if a permanent impairnmeeds to be recorded. The periodic evaluatioraof/ing value of capitalized costs and any
related property, plant and equipment costs arecbapon expected cash flows and/or estimated salvalge in accordance with ASC Topic
360, "Accounting for the Impairment or Disposalaoing-Lived Assets."

Foreign Currency Translation - The Company'’s rapgrturrency is the U.S. Dollar. All transactiongtiated in foreign currencies are translated
into U.S. dollars in accordance with ASC Topic 8B0reign Currency Matters” as follows.

i) monetary assets and liabilities at the ratexahange in effect at the balance sheet date;

il) non-monetary assets at historical rates; and

iii) revenue and expense items at the averageofarchange prevailing during the period.

Gains and losses from foreign currency transact@wesncluded in the statement of operations.

For foreign operations with the local currencylzes functional currency, assets and liabilitiesteaaslated from the local currencies into U.S.
dollars at the exchange rate prevailing at therlzal@heet date. Revenues and expenses are trdratléte average exchange rate for the period
to approximate translation at the exchange rategilieg at the dates those elements are recogtiztie financial statements. Translation
adjustments resulting from the process of tramglatie local currency financial statements into.d@lars are included in determining
comprehensive loss. As of June 30, 2012 and 26&lexchange rate for the Armenian Dram (AMD) was85AMD and $369 AMD for $1.00
u.s.

The functional currency of the Company's Armeniabsidiaries is the local currency. The financiatetents of the subsidiary are translated to

U.S. dollars using period-end rates of exchangead$sets and liabilities, and the average rate ciange for the period for revenues, costs, and
expenses. Net gains and losses resulting fromgior@kchange transactions are included in the cilzdet statements of operations.
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Principles of Consolidation - Our consolidated fin&l statements have been prepared in accordaitit@ecounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America, and delihe accounts of the Company and more-than-50%edwubsidiaries that it
controls. Inter-company balances and transactiane been eliminated in consolidation.

Depreciation, Depletion and Amortization - Capiteli costs are depreciated or depleted using thigistiine method over the shorter of
estimated productive lives of such facilities o tiseful life of the individual assets. Productives range from 1 to 20 years, but do not exceed
the useful life of the individual asset. Determioatof expected useful lives for amortization céétiwns are made on a property-by-property or
asset-by-asset basis at least annually.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets - Management resd@md evaluates the net carrying value of all f#&sl, including idle facilities, for
impairment at least annually, or upon the occumeasfmther events or changes in circumstancesrttiate that the related carrying amounts
may not be recoverable. We estimate the net rdddizalue of each property based on the estimatdcounted future cash flows that will be
generated from operations at each property, thimattd salvage value of the surface plant and egenp and the value associated with property
interests. All assets at an operating segmentwaie@ed together for purposes of estimating futagh flows.

Licenses - Licenses are capitalized at cost andragtized on a straighine basis on a range from 1 to 10 years, but deroeed the useful li
of the individual license. At June 30, 2012 and2Gamortization expense totaled $149,158 and $586respectively.

Reclamation and Remediation Costs (Asset Retire@bhgations) - Costs of future expenditures fovienmental remediation are not
discounted to their present value unless subjegtdontractually obligated fixed payment sched8lech costs are based on management's ¢
estimate of amounts to be incurred when the rertiediavork is performed within current laws and rkgions. The Company has accrued
approximately $34,000 as of June 30, 2012 and DkeeBi1, 2011 which it needs to pay towards it emuinental costs which remain unpaid as
of the date of this filing.

It is possible that, due to uncertainties assodiati¢h defining the nature and extent of environtaénontamination and the application of laws
and regulations by regulatory authorities and ckang reclamation or remediation technology, thienate cost of reclamation and remediation
could change in the future.

Revenue Recognition - Sales are recognized andiuegeare recorded when title transfers and thésrigtd obligations of ownership pass to the
customer. The majority of the company's metal cotreges are sold under pricing arrangements whieaégrices are determined by quoted
market prices in a period subsequent to the dasalef In these circumstances, revenues are ratatdbe times of sale based on forward prices
for the expected date of the final settlement. Thenpany did not recognize any revenue for thergirnths ended June 30, 2012 and 2011from
sales from its Toukhmanuk property in Armenia. Twmpany also possesses Net Smelter Return (“N&iR&ity from non-affiliated

companies. As the non-affiliated companies recmnevenue, as per above, the Company is entdléd NSR royalty percentage and royalty
income is recognized and recorded. The Companpalidecognize any royalty income for the six maerghded June 30, 2012 and 2011.

New Accounting Standard

In May 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-0Bair Value Measurement (Topic 820): Amendments¢bidve Common Fair Value Measurerr
and Disclosure Requirements in U.S. GAAP and IFRSASU 2011-04"). This standard results in a commrequirement between the FASB
and the International Accounting Standards Boardhfeasuring fair value and disclosing informatidmoat fair value measurements. ASU 2011-
04 is effective for fiscal years and interim pesdzkginning after December 15, 2011. The adoptidhi® accounting pronouncement did not
have any effect on our financial position and rssof operations.
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In June 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-05, "Corgmisive Income: Presentation of Comprehensive IncoffeU 2011-05 will require
companies to present the components of net incom@ther comprehensive income either as one canisatatement or as two consecutive
statements. ASU 2011-05 eliminates the option ésgmt components of other comprehensive incomaragfthe statement of changes in
stockholders' equity. ASU 2011-05 does not chahgatems which must be reported in other compreafienscome, how such items are
measured or when they must be reclassified toneehie. ASU 2011-05 will be effective for the finsterim and annual periods beginning after
December 15, 2011. Further, in December 2011, AeBrssued ASU 2011-12, "Deferral of the Effectivate for Amendments to the
Presentation of Reclassifications of Items Out ofémulated Other Comprehensive Income in Accourfiitagndards Update No. 2011-05." The
adoption of this guidance concerns disclosure anty did not have a material impact on its constdidiinancial statements.

Management does not believe that any other recasthyed, but not yet effective, accounting stanslamlild have a material effect on the
accompanying consolidated financial statementsievg accounting pronouncements are issued, the Gompil adopt those that are applica
under the circumstances.

A variety of proposed or otherwise potential acdonstandards are currently under study by stahdaiting organizations and various
regulatory agencies. Due to the tentative andmpieéiry nature of those proposed standards, managédras not determined whether
implementation of such proposed standards wouleh&ierial to our consolidated financial statements.

3. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The following table illustrates the capitalized tless accumulated depreciation arriving at thecagtying value on our books at June 30, 2012
and December 31, 2011.

June 30, December 31,
2012 2011
Property, plant and equipment $ 3,879,911 % 3,987,18:
Less accumulated depreciation (2,757,80) (2,812,30.)
$ 1,122,100 $ 1,174,88I

The Company had depreciation expense for the sintlmsaended June 30, 2012 and 2011 of $140,796 2881200, respectively.
4. OTHER RECEIVABLE

As of June 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011, the @oynwas owed $3,250,000 and $4,000,000, respegtivem Amarant from the sale of
100% of the Company’s interest in the GGV, whickditbe Pureo mining assets in Chile, and 100% éstein its wholly owned subsidiaries
Global Oro LLC and Global Plata LLC which are e&€8%6 owners of Minera Global Chile Limitada, allgegt of the amended agreement clc
on December 2, 2011. The Company did not recéieesi, 000,000 due on December 15, 2011, and hpsengived $850,000 of that payment
as of August 17, 2012. From April 1, 2012 througime 30, 2012, the Company was promised $150,080 Amarant and its principal, Mr.
Johan Ulander, of additional compensation in exgkdor concessions given to Amarant and its pralcilr. Johan Ulander, as more fully
described below. The Company wrote down the reimgi$3,250,000 and $3,950,000 as of June 30, 20d Dacember 31, 2011, respectively,
as impairment as Amarant has yet to pay. Amarastéportedly assigned its interest to Alluvia MaLimited, a public limited liability
company incorporated under the laws of Jersey (({Adl"), an assignment which the Company conditiynednsented as of June 15, 2012, but
as of June 30, 2012, the conditions have not bestrbynany of Amarant or Mr. Ulander.

On October 27, 2010, the Company entered into ageagent with Conventus for the sale of 100% intarethe GGV which holds the Pureo

mining assets in Chile. Until December 31, 20h#&, Company provided Conventus with consulting seviand technical assistance for
development, production, exploration, and expansicthe GGV mining properties in further consideratof the payment terms below.
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Key terms included that Conventus shall pay $5ManiUSD over four years and two months payalsiéatiows: $250,000 on or before

October 31, 2010; $250,000 on or before NovembgePB00; $500,000 at the closing on or before M&th2011; $1,000,000 on or before
December 31, 2011; $1,000,000 on or before DeceBthe2012; $1,000,000 on or before December 313.28d $1,000,000 on or before
December 31, 2014 until $5,000,000 in total hasitpsed. If the sale did not close, the Company reaponsible for repayment of the $500,000
in payments made prior to closing based on termsiroggent upon the reason for the closing to notuoc®ayments to the Company will be
secured. As of October 27, 2010, Conventus Ltdseéedy responsible, at its own expense for all @gps and other matters required by contract
or law to comply with conditions related to the @uproperty, and in particular with the July 2402@ontractual condition to commence
production on a commercial basis on the properiyggoransferred to its sole control pursuant ts #igreement on or before August 15, 2011
(subject to any time taken for permitting purposes)

As additional consideration, if within seven ye@snventus or any of its successors produces 18@00ces of gold from the GGV property or
property in Chile which the Company assists GG\Conventus in acquiring, then Conventus shall ol slaase GGV to pay the Company a
one-off and once only $2,500,000 bonus within 6@sdzf achieving such production. The closing oftilamsaction was subject to a definitive
agreement and agreement being reached with MiH#ue, with respect to his royalty to the satiséecof Conventus.

On December 2, 2011, the Company closed an ameagtedment with Conventus and Amarant, originallgesd into on October 27, 2010, for
the sale of 100% interest in the GGV which heldRlobeeo mining assets in Chile. As part of the ainant and closing, Global Gold also sold
100% interest in its wholly owned subsidiaries Gllo®ro and Global Plata, both of which are Delawaneited Liability Corporations, and are
each 50% owners of Minera Global in exchange falitaxhal compensation, payable on or before Decertibe2011, of a 1% interest in
Amarant. GGV is owned by Minera Global (51%) arldisal Oro (49%). Conventus has assigned its rigbt@bligations from this agreemen
Amarant.

Key terms included that Amarant shall pay the $dilion USD remaining of the $5.0 million USD sgleice obligation as follows: $1,000,000
on or before December 15, 2011; $1,000,000 on foré®ecember 15, 2012; $1,000,000 on or beforeeBer 15, 2013; and $1,000,000 ol
before December 31, 2014 subject to the terms anditions in the agreement.

As additional consideration, if within seven yeakmarant or any of its successors produces 1500808es of gold from the Pureo property t
Amarant shall pay the Company a one-off and ondég $,500,000 bonus within 60 days of achievinghspimduction.

On April 13, 2012, the Company entered into an "Aded Joint Membership Interest Purchase Agreenvatit"’Amarant to amend the parties'
December 2, 2011 "Joint Membership Interest Puekageement” as follows: the 1 million dollar paymh&om Amarant due the Company on
December 15, 2011 shall be paid by April 20, 2Qh8;three "Additional Payments” of 1 million doBatue on each of December 15, 2012,
December 15, 2013, and December 15, 2014 shddeéghaid in a lump sum of three million dollars ptio May 31, 2012, as further described in
Exhibit 10.49. On April 13, 2012, the Company alsceived a guaranty from Contender Kapital AB wickholm Sweden (“Contender”) that if
Amarant fails to make the 1 million dollar paymémthe Company on or before Friday April 20, 20C2ntender will satisfy the 1 million doll:
payment, as further described in Exhibit 10.50nt€nder defaulted on its guaranty. On May 10, 282 Company and Amarant agreed that
the Company would forego legal actions in exchdong@ayment by Amarant of the $800,000 balanceplus a $50,000 additional
compensation payment by May 11, 2012 and the shiageof the grace period for late payment of ther#ition dollar payment due from
Amarant to the Company from 60 days to 10 days adfeey 31, 2012. On May 9, 2012, Contender ackndggal that it had received notice o
obligation to pay on a valid guaranty of $1 millji@nd reaffirmed its guaranty. On May 18, 2012 akamt and its principal, Mr. Ulander, agrt
to pay Global an additional $50,000 payment (initaiul to the previously agreed $50,000 additiorempent) in exchange for foregoing legal
action. On June 15, 2012, the Company conditipr@reed to a revised schedule of debt repaynheatigh August 30, 2012. The revised
schedule provides the Company to receive 20% oproeteeds of funds raised by Alluvia or Amaranthair affiliates with a ceiling of
$3,250,000 (which includes additional compensatfooth any source. Also, the Company agreed to evdssright of first refusal with respect
transfer of GGV shares as part of this revisioks a condition of the amended sale closed on Deee@f2011, the Company was to receive
certain shares or ownership of Amarant, amounting33,856 shares of Amarant. These shares weriweeda July 2012. No value has been
recorded for these shares for the following reasanthere is no active trading market to value¢hghares, b) Amarant is a private company, c)
we do not have access to the financials of Amaraatd in calculating a value, and d) these shagesived present a small minority ownershi
Amarant. Amarant and Alluvia remain in default eftain provisions of this sale agreement with Amara

13




5. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED EXPENSES

As of June 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011, theuatsayable and accrued expenses consisted faliitwing:

June 30, December 31,
2012 2011
Drilling work payable $ 210,02: $ 227,57
Accounts payable 2,817,88 2,305,60!
Accrued expenses 135,14¢ 141,27¢
$ 3,163,05 $ 2,674,45!

6. MINORITY INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURE PENDING

The Company received $5,000,000 from a joint venitas more fully described below, and is carryhig $5,000,000 as a liability pending
closing or termination of the joint venture. Sujto satisfaction of the contractual terms anddéions, the joint venture agreement called for a
closing date of April 26, 2012. The ConsolidatezbBurces joint venture is operationally defunce Rpril 26, 2012 deadline set in the April
2011 JV Agreement to close the transaction hasegasghout a closing for several reasons includimg,not limited to, the following. First,
ABB bank whose consent was required did not proitaleonsent after CR and GGCRL failed to tranffeds to cover the April loan payment
to ABB from Mego Gold as required of CR and GGCRhe ABB Bank also requested the financial statemefithe JV Companies (GGCRL
and GGCR Mining) which were to replace Global Gataise financial statements could not be delivef@tbbal Gold arranged to cure the
default occasioned by CR's and GGCRL's failure &ixerthe agreed, budgeted loan payment.) Seconde@& submitted or had executed the
complete resolutions and transfer documents negessalose. Third, CR took the position that Glbslaould transfer the shares of the
companies holding the Toukhmanuk and Getik propassets without regard to the other JV Agreememtractual terms and without the JV
Company being capitalized; Global Gold and itsrattgs considered that to be a demand outside thteacts and potentially fraudulent as
substantial agreed and budgeted costs associdtedwiproperties needed to be and still need mlered.

Subsequent to April 26, 2012, Global engaged irfedation of the unresolved issues and settlengéstussions with CR and its outside counsel.
Settlement discussions reached a deadlock andestaggn notice from CR's outside counsel, withoytr@sumption on May 11, 2012.
Settlement discussions recommended and are ongidtihghe purported majority owner of CR and GGCRIledtor, Mr. Prem (Caralapati)
Premraj. CR repeatedly acknowledged that its $bomiin payments under the April 2011 JV Agreememetre at risk if the April 26, 2012
closing did not occur; Global has guaranteed apprately $1.5 million of convertible debt obligat®ifrom the JV company to CR, which are
due in 2013 and on which Global has not taken &iposn light of CR's failure to perform its obbgions. Global Gold remains in full control

and the 100% owner of the properties and compavtiésh were to be the subject of the joint venturd eemains open to amicable settlement
with CR. But, in light of the factors noted abovedaspecially the lack of capital to meet the Jelemture companies' obligations, Global Gol
forced to look at other options to meet the prapsrbbligations and is actively doing so while king toward settlement.

As of March 17, 2011, the Company entered intagneement (the “Formation Agreement”) with Consatiédl Resources USA, LLC, a
Delaware company (“CRU”) for a joint venture on thempany’s Toukhmanuk and Getik properties in Ariadthe “Properties”). Upon
payment of the initial consideration as providetbine Global Gold and CRU will work together for tive months (the “12 Month Period”) to
develop the Properties and cause the Properties ¢ontributed to a new joint venture company, wehdentity and terms will be mutually
agreed, (the “JVC”). Rasia, a Dubai-based priscgalvisory company, acted as sole advisor onrgmsaction.

Key terms included CRU paying initial consideratmfrs5,000,000 as a working capital commitment tob@l Gold payable by: a $500,000
advance immediately following the execution of Bemation Agreement (the “Advance”); $1,400,0004idg following the satisfactory
completion of due diligence by CRU and the executibdefinitive documents in 30 days from the dzftéhis Agreement; and $3,100,000
according to a separate schedule in advance arableawithin 5 business days of the end of evergraddr month as needed.
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On April 27, 2011, the Company entered into an egeent with Consolidated Resources Armenia, an ekaorpresident Cayman Islands
company (“CRA”); and its affiliate CRU, (hereinafteollectively referred to as “CR”), to fund devphloent and form a joint venture on the
Properties (the “JV Agreement”). The JV Agreemeas entered pursuant to the Formation Agreement.

CR completed its due diligence with satisfactiand as of the date of the JV Agreement completeduhaing of the required $500,000
Advance. Upon the terms and subject to the cantditdf JV Agreement, CR was to complete the fundintipe remaining $4,500,000 of its
$5,000,000 working capital commitment related taklimanuk and Getik according to an agreed, resttitinding schedule which included
$1,400,000 payable following the execution of thgrement and the remaining $3,100,000 payabletbeeanext 12 months with payments
occurring within 5 business days of the end of eadbndar month as needed. In addition, Mr. Jefflarvin of CR was elected a member of
Global Gold Board of Directors and attended the Gany's annual meeting on June 10, 2011. Rasiapaibased principal advisory compai
acted as sole advisor on the transaction. As eeBwber 31, 2011, the Company received the full @00 funding from CR, although not on
the agreed schedule which interfered with the Towdhuk production program. Mr. Marvin resigned frtira Global Gold board on February
24, 2012 for personal reasons.

Pursuant to the JV Agreement, Global Gold and CRewework together for twelve months (the “12 Moeriod”) from the date of the JV
Agreement to develop the Properties, improve thartial performance and enhance shareholder v@l@hal Gold and CR agreed to form a
new Joint Venture Company (“JVC”) to be establishgdCR, subject to terms and conditions mutuallg eeasonably agreed with Global Gold,
provided that JVC shall have no liabilities, obtigas, contingent or not, or commitments, excepspant to a shareholders’ agreement. Global
Gold and CR intended to integrate all of Global@®IToukhmanuk and Getik mining and explorationragiens into the JVC.

The JVC was to (i) own, develop and operate Toukiukand Getik, (ii) be a company listed on an ergesfully admitted to trading or be in
the process of being listed on such exchange @phtgve no liabilities, obligations, contingentmot, or commitments except pursuant to the
shareholders agreement. The JVC was to issue Imewssto the Company such that following any revererger or initial public offering of
JVC's shares ("IPQ"), Global Gold shall directlyirdirectly hold the greater of (a) 51% of the eégquif JVC, or (b) $40.0 million in newly
issued stock of JVC, calculated based on the volwegighted average price ("VWAP") of such shares dhe first 30 (thirty) days of trading
following the IPO, assuming issuance of all shagssable in the IPO, and assuming issuance ohatkes issuable as management shares and
conversion of the Notes issued under the Instrurfantiefined hereinafter) and all other convertigeurities and exercise of any warrants or
other securities issued in connection with the IB@h that if following any reverse merger or IR value of $40.0 million in newly issued
shares based on VWAP of JVC shares is greaterttizaBlobal Gold's 51% equity ownership in JVC vdlas above, new shares in JVC will be
issued to the Global Gold such that the aggregaiteevof Global Gold's ownership in JVC is sharegrta value of $40.0 million based on
VWAP, and the Company shall remain in control & #vC following the public listing. See Agreemé&mtmore information on Consolidated
Resource Agreement.

7. CONVERTIBLE NOTE PAYABLE

On January 17, 2012, the Company, through its j@nture company Global Gold Consolidated Resourgraiged (“GGCRL”) signed a
convertible note payable for up to $2,000,000 (‘8¢3} in conjuction with the binding term sheet sdrwith Consolidated Resources Armenia
and affiliates (“CRA")which was guaranteed by the Company. GGCRL rede$te549,324 as of June 30, 2012 and the Comparayiiging its
guaranty as a liability. The Notes carries 3%ag@rum Cash Coupon/Guaranteed Minimum Annual IRE586 at a liquidity event, if any
(“Liquidity Event”). At a Liquidity Event, if any, the principal amounitthe Notes will be repaid in full based on théuesof the Notes at mark
(the “Market Value”) assuming a conversion valu® inew common shares of GGCRL representing a \ajueed to in section 2.5 of the Joint
Venture agreement (for avoidance of doubt, theev&l % of the existing shares of JVC then hel@GKBC for each $784,314 of the Notes based
on a GGCRL valuation of $78.4314 million). Exceptprovided for under the Cash Election in Seci&nof the Joint Venture agreement, the
Notes may not be voluntarily converted by CRA i®@@CRL except by the unanimous consent of the BoaRirectors of GGCRL an

otherwise will become due at the earlier of theulidiity Event or Maturity, subject to Section 2.5tbé Joint Venture agreement. Maturity is the
first anniversary date of each note. The Notes beagrepaid without any penalty.
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8. SECURED LINE OF CREDIT

On March 26, 2010, the Company, through its whollyned subsidiary Mego Gold, LLC (“Mego”) enteredbia credit line agreement for 1
billion Armenian Drams (approximately $2,500,000)hwArmbusinessbank Close Joint Stock Company (“ABB Yerevan, Armenia. The
credit line included a grace period on repaymetit &pril 20, 2011, is not revolving, may be pre@ait any time, and is to be drawn down
towards equipment purchases, construction, andnsiqua of the existing plant and operations to iaseeproduction capacity to 300,000 tonnes
of ore per year at Mege Toukhmanuk property in Armenia. The loan isdqreriod of 5 years through March 20, 2015, badeseést at 14% fc
amounts borrowed, and bears interest at 2% for atremailable but not borrowed. The loan is mad# @ayable in local AMD currency. As
security, 100% of the Mego shares and the miniglgt icertified by the Mining License Agreement #2@th Purpose of Sub-Surface
Exploitation and Mining License #HA-L-14/356 issuadl August 5, 2005. The balance owed at June@®I®, %as $1,644,697. There was no
accrued interest owed as of June 30, 2012.

9. SEGMENT REPORTING BY GEOGRAPHIC AREA

The Company sells its products primarily to onet@uner in Europe. The Company performs ongoing tegiluations on its customers and
generally does not require collateral. The Compapgrates in a single industry segment, productfagolnl and other precious metals including
royalties from other non-affiliated companies preiiten of gold and other precious metals.

For the six months ending June 30, 2012 and 206&1Cbmpany did not have any sales.

The following summarizes identifiable assets bygyaphic area:

Assets table:

June 30, December 31,
2012 2011
Armenia $ 3,371,39: $ 3,652,70:
United States 26,23¢ 69,28
Total $ 3,397,63. $ 3,721,98
The following summarizes operating losses befoowipion for income tax:
Net Loss table
June 30, June 30,
2012 2011
Armenia $ 2,187,48. $ 1,385,511
Chile - 62,701
United States 324,04" 1,031,56
Total $ 2,511,521 $ 2,479,78!

10. CONCENTRATION RISK

Financial instruments which potentially subject @@mpany to concentrations of credit risk consigtgipally of cash. The Company places its
cash with high credit quality financial instituti®in the United States and Armenia. Bank depasitise United States did not exceed federally
insured limits as of June 30, 2012 and Decembe2@1]. As of June 30, 2012 and December 31, 28&1Company had approximately
$145,000 and $16,300, respectively, in Armeniarkllaposits which may not be insured. The Compasynioa experienced any losses in such
accounts through June 30, 2012 and as of the figtésdiling.

The majority of the Company's present activitiesiarArmenia and Chile. As with all types of intational business operations, currency

fluctuations, exchange controls, restrictions arifgn investment, changes to tax regimes, politacéibn and political instability could impair
the value of the Company's investments.
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11. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED PARTY TRANSATUONS
The Company values shares issued to officers ubmfpir value of common shares on grant date.

On June 19, 2009, the Company'’s independent corafiencommittee and the board of directors autleariemployment amendments and
extensions to Messrs. Krikorian, Boghossian, Dulngand Caesar under the same terms of their prieeagents.

On August 12, 2009, the Company finalized employnagmeement amendments and extensions under theeteams of their current contracts
which were approved on June 19, 2009 by the Conipamyependent compensation committee of the bofdirector’s to retain key
employees, for Messrs. Krikorian, Boghossian, Dulraad Caesar. Annual compensation terms werennmased.

Mr. Krikorian’s employment agreement was extended for an addit®pear term from July 1, 2009 through June 80, 22with an annual sala
of $225,000 and Mr. Krikorian was granted 1,050,808res of restricted common stock which will vestqual semi-annual installments over
the term of his employment agreement.

Mr. Boghossian’s employment agreement was extefategh additional 3 year term from July 1, 200%tigh June 30, 2012 with an annual
salary of $72,000 and Mr. Boghossian was grant&d58® shares of restricted common stock whichweifit in equal semi-annual installments
over the term of his employment agreement.

Mr. Dulman’s employment agreement was extendeaffioadditional 3 year term from August 1, 2009 tigtoduly 31, 2012 with an annual
salary of $150,000 and Mr. Dulman was granted ZXxbghares of restricted common stock which wiltwe®qual semi-annual installments
over the term of his employment agreement. Mr.nar was also granted stock options to purchas®@@5hares of common stock of the
Company at $0.14 per share (based on the closiog gt his renewal) vesting in equal quarterlyafistents over the term of his employment
agreement.

On August 19, 2010, Mr. Gallagher received 20,0tras of restricted common stock and stock optiompairchase 100,000 of common stoc
the Company. Mr. Gallagher’s contract was previpastomatically renewed and extended through Déezrl, 2010. On June 18, 2010,
pursuant to Mr. Gallagher's employment agreemetgresion under his contract and as confirmed byrthependent compensation committee
and board of directors, Mr. Gallagher was grant@@@0 shares of restricted common stock with 10€G0es vesting immediately, and 10,000
shares vesting on December 31, 2010. Mr. Gallaghsralso granted stock options to purchase 10&GBaks of common stock of the
Company at $0.10 per share, based on the fair maakee on June 18, 2010 when they were authorizesting on November 19, 2010. The
restricted stock is subject to a substantial ristodeiture upon termination of his employment wthe Company during the term of the
Employment Agreement.

On June 10, 2011, the Company’s non-interested raeswdd the Board of Directors approved an offenfigp to 2,000,000 restricted shares of
the Companys Common Stock, at the current fair market valug®15 per share, in aid of settlement of up to0$300 of this debt to extingui:
and convert some of the outstanding debt. As né 28, 2011, the Company has been given acceplantte entire conversion. The
transaction will benefit the Company by reducing tlurrent debt by $300,000 and eliminating ther@stiefrom continuing to accrue on these
debts. On June 23, 2011, the Company issuedlafd@a000,000 shares of the Company’s common sidukh will be restricted in exchange
for the debt cancellation.

On June 23, 2011, the Company issued as diredtms’to each of the six directors (Nicholas AymijiBrury J. Gallagher, Harry Gilmore, lan

Hague, Jeffrey Marvin and Van Z. Krikorian) 50,0@8tricted shares of the Company’s Common Sto@0di5 per share for a total value of
$45,000. The shares were issued pursuant to taedBaJune 10, 2011 decision from which date tlazeshwere valued.
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On June 23, 2011, the Company declared a stockstioremployees in Armenia and Chile of 800,000ri&st shares of the Company’s
Common Stock at $0.15 per share for a total vaf#120,000. The shares were issued pursuant tBahed’s June 10, 2011 decision from
which date the shares were valued.

On November 28, 2011, Drury Gallagher gave fornugice to the Company of his decision to retire aalaried employee of the Company
effective December 31, 2011 but will remain a Dioe@nd maintain his titles of Chairman Emeritusgasurer and Secretary. On November 29,

2011, Mr. Gallagher was granted 40,000 sharesstficeed common stock at $0.19 per share for & waiae of $7,600 as compensation.

On February 24, 2012, Jeffrey Marvin resigned Béractor from the Global Gold Corporation for pemabreasons. Mr. Marvin did not hold ¢
positions on any committee of the board of direcfor Global Gold Corporation.

On April 20, 2012, Lester Caesar was appointedBisextor of Global. Mr. Caesar is a Certified Ra\ccountant with over twenty five years
of experience and has also previously served alsaBsoCFO and Controller which served as the bfasiim being appointed a Director.

On April 20, 2012, the Company authorized as diectfees to each of the six directors (Nicholasifign, Drury J. Gallagher, Harry Gilmore,
lan Hague, Lester Caesar and Van Z. Krikorian) @0 i@stricted shares of the Company’s Common Sao&0.20 per share for a total value of
$60,000.

The amount of total deferred equity compensationréized for the six months ended June 30, 201228dd was $28,376 and $28,376.

As of June 30, 2012, one of the Company's Direcfarsry Gallagher, was owed $66,500 from interest loans made to the Company which
remain unpaid as of the date of this filing.

As of June 30, 2012, the Company owes unpaid wafgagproximately $568,000 to management. The Commaccruing interest at an anr
rate of 9% on the net of taxes wages owed to manage As of June 30, 2012, the Company had acérecest of approximately $113,000.

As of June 30, 2012, the Company had loans dumpdagees in Armenia of approximately $190,000. Tdans accrue interest at an annual
of 14%. The Company did not have any accruedesteas of June 30, 2012.

12. AGREEMENTS AND COMMITMENTS

Quijano Agreements

On August 9, 2007 and August 19, 2007, the Compidmngugh Minera Global, entered agreements to fajjoint venture and on October 29,
2007, the Company closed its joint venture agreéméh members of the Quijano family by which MiagBlobal assumed a 51% interest in
placer and hard rock gold Madre de Dios and Purepegsties. The name of the joint venture compangampania Minera Global Gold Valdi
S.C.M. (“Global Gold Valdivia” or “GGV”).

Key agreement terms for the Madre De Dios jointtwenagreement include a 1,000,000 euro paymemt @tobal Gold (paid as of October 30,
2007), and the following joint venture terms equitierests set at 51%-49% in favor of Global Golitthe 3 directors, two (Mr. Krikorian and
Dr. Ted Urquhart, Global's Vice President in Sagdijeare appointed by Global Gold; Global Gold comsrto finance at least one plant and
mining operation within 6 months as well as a mijuagreed exploration program to establish proreserves, if that is successful, two
additional plants/operations will be financed; frtme profits of the joint venture, Global Gold wilay its partner an extra share based on the
following scale of 28 million euros for (a) 5 mdh ounces of gold produced in 5 years or (b) Siamilbunces of gold proven as reserves
according to Canadian National Instrument 43-10I @¢3-101")standards in 5 years. The 6 month obligation wasraled and extended by 1
October 27, 2007 Pact to a period of 3 years. ddfmitions of proven and probable reserves in 81191 reports differ from the definitions in
SEC Industry Guide 7. Also, the SEC does not reizegthe terms “measured resources and indicagsadirees” or “inferred resources” which
are used in NI 43-101 reports. The Company hasimariced any plants as of December 31, 2009.
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On July 24, 2009, Global Gold entered into an amestt with members of the Quijano family (“Quijanad)the October 29, 2007 Global Gold
Valdivia joint venture subject to final board appabon or before July 31, 2009 whereby GGV will tee wholly owned by Global Gold and
retain only the Pureo Claims Block (approximatel¥d® hectares), transferring the Madre De Diogmdablock to the sole ownership to
members of the Quijano family. On July 28, 200@, amendment was approved by the Company’s boatuexftors.

Key terms of the amendment included that on ordeefauigust 15, 2009, GGV transfer to Quijano ordesignee one hundred percent (100%)
interest in the current GGV claims identified as Madre De Dios Claims Block and Quijano transeGtobal Gold one hundred percent
(100%) interest in the GGV, or its designee, ardréimaining claims identified as the Pureo ClaifmeB All transfers were closed in Santia
Chile on August 14, 2009 which terminated the joienture. If GGV does not commence production eoramercial basis on the property
being transferred to its sole control pursuanhts agreement within two years (subject to any tiaken for permitting purposes), the property
shall revert to Quijano.

Quijano shall be entitled a 3% NSR royalty inteiiesall metals produced from the properties retdimeGGV up to a maximum of 27 millit
Euros, subject to Quijang’initial repayment of $200,000 to Global Gold. Buiee years, GGV or its designee shall havetd offirst refuse
on any bona fide offers for all or any part of greperties transferred to Quijano (to be exercisgdin five (5) days). For three years, Quiji
shall also have a right of first refusal on any ddide offers for all or any part of the propertretained by GGV or its designee (to be exerc
within twenty (20) days). The Company's obligatipas amended, were transferred to Amarant.

Coventus/Amarant Agreements

On October 27, 2010, the Company entered into a@eagent with Conventus Ltd. a BVI corporation (“@entus”)for the sale of 100% inter¢
in the GGV which holds the Pureo mining assets lileC The Company agreed to provide Conventus withsulting services and techn
assistance for development, production, exploratom expansion of the GGV mining properties irtifar consideration of the payment te
below.

Key terms included that Conventus shall pay $5.0iani USD over four years and two months payaldef@lows: $250,000 on or befc
October 31, 2010; $250,000 on or before November28@0; $500,000 at the closing on or before M&th2011; $1,000,000 on or bef
December 31, 2011; $1,000,000 on or before Decerdbef012; $1,000,000 on or before December 31328ad $1,000,000 on or bef
December 31, 2014 until $5,000,000 in total hased. If the sale did not close, the Company weaponsible for repayment of the $500,

in payments made prior to closing based on ternmsiragent upon the reason for the closing to notuoc®ayments to the Company will
secured. As of October 27, 2010, Conventus Ltdseéay responsible, at its own expense for all e@sps and other matters required by cor

or law to comply with conditions related to the @urproperty, and in particular with the July 2409Ccontractual condition to commel
production on a commercial basis on the propertggotransferred to its sole control pursuant t@ thgreement on or before August 15, 2011
(subject to any time taken for permitting purposes)

As additional consideration, if within seven yea@snventus or any of its successors produces 16@0Aces of gold from the GGV property
property in Chile which the Company assists GG\Conventus in acquiring, then Conventus shall oil slzaise GGV to pay the Compan
oneoff and once only $2,500,000 bonus within 60 dafyadahieving such production. The closing of thensi@tion is subject to a definiti
agreement and agreement being reached with MH#ue, with respect to his royalty to the satiséecof Conventus.

On December 2, 2011, the Company closed an amagtedment with Conventus and Amarant, originalierrd into on October 27, 2010,
the sale of 100% interest in the GGV which heldRlueeo mining assets in Chile. As part of theadment and closing, Global Gold also :
100% interest in its wholly owned subsidiaries GlloBro and Global Plata, both of which are Delawaneited Liability Corporations, and &
each 50% owners of Minera Global in exchange falitawhal compensation, payable on or before Deceribe2011, of a 1% interest (533,¢
shares) in Amarant. GGV is owned by Minera Glotadl%) and Global Oro (49%). Conventus has assi@setight and obligations from tt
agreement to Amarant.

Key terms included that Amarant would pay the $4illion USD remaining of the $5.0 million USD saleice obligation as follows: $1,000,0
on or before December 15, 2011; $1,000,000 on fmrédecember 15, 2012; $1,000,000 on or beforeebder 15, 2013; and $1,000,000 ol
before December 31, 2014 subject to the terms anditions in the agreement. The Company did negixe the $1,000,000 due December 15,
2011, and has only received $900,000 of that payeenf August 15, 2012.
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On April 13, 2012, the Company entered into an "Aded Joint Membership Interest Purchase Agreenwtit"/Amarant to amend the parties'
December 2, 2011 "Joint Membership Interest Puelageement” as follows: the 1 million dollar paymh&om Amarant due the Company on
December 15, 2011 shall be paid by April 20, 2Qh&;three "Additional Payments" of 1 million doBatue on each of December 15, 2012,
December 15, 2013, and December 15, 2014 shddéghaid in a lump sum of three million dollars ptio May 31, 2012, as further described in
Exhibit 10.49. On April 13, 2012, the Company alsceived a guaranty from Contender Kapital AB twicRholm Sweden (“Contender”) that if
Amarant fails to make the 1 million dollar paymémthe Company on or before Friday April 20, 20C2ntender will satisfy the 1 million doll:
payment, as further described in Exhibit 10.50nt€nder defaulted on its guaranty. On May 10, 282 Company and Amarant agreed that
the Company would forego legal actions in exchaong@ayment by Amarant of the $800,000 balanceplus a $50,000 additional
compensation payment by May 11, 2012 and the shiogef the grace period for late payment of ther$ion dollar payment due from
Amarant to the Company from 60 days to 10 days &ftey 31, 2012. On May 9, 2012, Contender ackndgéel that it had received notice o
obligation to pay on a valid guaranty of $1 millji@nd reaffirmed its guaranty. On May 18, 2012 akamt and its principal, Mr. Ulander, agrt
to pay Global an additional $50,000 payment (initamiu to the previously agreed $50,000 additiorempent) in exchange for foregoing legal
action. On June 15, 2012, the Company conditipr@reed to a revised schedule of debt repaynheatigh August 30, 2012. The revised
schedule provides the Company to receive 20% oprueteeds of funds raised by Alluvia or Amaranthair affiliates with a ceiling of
$3,250,000 (which includes additional compensatfaarh any source. Also, the Company agreed to evas/right of first refusal with respect
transfer of GGV shares as part of this revisioks a condition of the amended sale closed on Deee@?011, the Company was to receive
certain shares or ownership of Amarant, amounting33,856 shares of Amarant. These shares weriwedda July 2012. No value has been
recorded for these shares for the following reasanthere is no active trading market to values¢hghares, b) Amarant is a private company, c)
we do not have access to the financials of Amaraatd in calculating a value, and d) these shegesived present a small minority ownershi
Amarant. Amarant and Alluvia remain in default eftain provisions of this sale agreement with Amara

As additional consideration, if within seven yeamarant or any of its successors produces 150000es of gold from the Pureo property 1
Amarant shall pay the Company a one-off and ondég $,500,000 bonus within 60 days of achievinghspimduction.

Industrial Minerals Agreements

On March 24, 2009, the Company signed a supplyrachagreement with Industrial Minerals SA (“IM3,Swiss Company. The agreement is
for IM to purchase all of the gold and silver comizate produced at the Company's Toukhmanuk facitiB5% of LBMA less certain treatment
and refining charges.

On February 25, 2010, the Company, through its lylmned subsidiary Mego entered into an agreemhtIM to provide Mego with an
advance of $450,000 from IM against future salegadd and silver concentrate (the “Advance”yhe Advance was provided by IM on Febru
26, 2010. The Company owed $87,020 from the Adeascof June 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011.

Key terms include; that Mego provides IM with arcksive offtake agreement for its gold and silver concentrag&rmenia through Decemt
31, 2012; for 2009 and until February 25, 2010, phiee IM paid Mego for gold and silver concentratas calculated based on 85% of
London AM/PM Gold Fixation and London Silver SpdLdndon Rates”),until Mego delivers 2,250 metric tons of concergréte 85% i
reduced to 80%, after 2,250 metric tons have bedineted the price will revert to 85% of London Bsit Mego provides IM with a secul
interest in its current ore stockpile in Armeniagdahe Company provides for a corporate guaramterepayment of the Advance.

Caldera Agreements

On December 18, 2009, the Company entered intgaeement with Caldera Resources Inc. (“Caldeoat)ining the terms for a joint venture
the Company’s Marjan property in Armenia (“Marjavi'}l

Key terms included that Caldera shall, subjecetmts and conditions, earn a 55% interest in thgaviagold-Silver-Polymetallic Project after
completing a bankable feasibility study on the pebjor spending US$3.0M on the property.

As additional consideration, Caldera made a nonaddble US$50,000 deposit by December 30, 2009saned 500,000 shares of the company
on a post-consolidated basis. Caldera was alsake ma payment of US$100,000 no later than Marct2800. A definitive agreement was to be
signed as soon as possible, upon completion ofidigence review, respective board approvals andragulatory approval that may be

required. The Company received the US$50,000 depo®ecember 29, 2009, and (after March 31, 2@i€)$100,000 payment.
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On March 24, 2010, the Company entered into aneaigeat with Caldera establishing the terms for atjeénture on the Company’s Marjan
property in Armenia (“Marjan JV”) which amended tteems of the December 18, 2009 agreement.

Key terms included that Caldera would own 55% efshares of a newly created joint venture compl@gome the operator of the project, and
be responsible for all expenses. To maintain5& interest, Caldera was obligated to spend upS# 8,000,000 on the Property, and issue
500,000 shares of Caldera to the Company. Théyeinture board would have two Caldera represemtmtind one Global Gold
representative. However, certain actions includidgption of the annual operating and capital btelgEuire unanimous consent. Should
Caldera not perform in accordance with the termhefMarjan JV, then Global Gold would have 100%iest of the Marjan JV transferred b
and Caldera will receive an NSR on the Marjan prigpequal to .5% for each tranche of US$ 1,000,006 a maximum NSR of 3% without
any prorating.

Also under the terminated joint venture agreemeaiti€a would own 100% in the Marjan Gold-SilverjBob by making quarterly payments
totaling US$ 2,850,000, starting September 30, 20iCaldera missed one of its quarterly payméatsed on its failure to raise funds from
capital markets, it was entitled to an automatid&9 extension from each quarterly payment; if Eeddlefaulted on an extended payment then
Caldera would forfeit its shares of the Marjan B¥,relieved of its investment commitment, but &t@dlliable for the payments to Global Gold
which would accrue interest at 10%, and possiltigimea royalty interest as described above. I1tl€a made its payments and completed its
obligations, Global Gold would retain a 1.5% NSRadirproduction on the Central zone and a 2.5% NSRIl production on the Northern

zone. Caldera could prepay the payments, fulfélinvestment commitment, and take 100% interestefV at any time.

The terminated agreement was subject to approveiédy¥SX Venture Exchange and the Board of Directdithe respective companies. As of
April 30, 2010, Caldera paid the Company $150,00Gpant to the December 2009 agreement. Caldetefunformed the Company that it
received TSX Venture Exchange approval on the &etien, which subsequently proved to be untrue.Cotober 7, 2010, the Company
terminated the Marjan JV for Caldera’s non-paynart non-performance as well as Caldera’s illeggibteations in Armenia and other
actions. In October 2010, Caldera filed for agditbn in New York City. In September 2010, at @aids invitation, the Company filed to
reverse the illegal registration in Armenia. Tliégation and the New York arbitration were subsently resolved in favor of the Company,
restoring the Company’s 100% ownership of Marj@he arbitration is still open with respect to GlbGald’s costs, attorney fees, and
counterclaims for damages against Caldera. Seal Maftters for an update on the Marjan JV.

ABB Agreement

On March 26, 2010, the Company, through its wholljned subsidiary Mego Gold, LLC (“Mego”) enteredbima credit line agreement for 1
billion Armenian Drams (approximately $2,500,000)hwArmbusinessbank Closed Joint Stock Company @BABn Yerevan, Armenia. The
credit line includes a grace period on repaymetit April 20, 2011, is not revolving, may be pregait any time, and is to be drawn down
towards equipment purchases, construction, andnsigna of the existing plant and operations to iaseeproduction capacity to 300,000 tonnes
of ore per year at Mege'Toukhmanuk property in Armenia. The loan isdqeriod of 5 years through March 20, 2015, bedesést at 14% fc
amounts borrowed, and bears interest at 2% for atraxailable but not borrowed. The loan is mad# @ayable in local AMD currency. As
security, 100% of the Mego shares and the minigigt certified by the Mining License Agreement #2@th Purpose of Sub-Surface
Exploitation and Mining License #HA-L-14/356 issuea August 5, 2005. The balance owed was $1,64468 $2,106,177 at June 30, 2012
and December 31, 2011.

Consolidated Resources Agreement

As of March 17, 2011, the Company entered intagneement (the “Formation Agreement”) with Consatiégdl Resources USA, LLC, a
Delaware limited liability company (“CRU") for aijat venture on the Company’s Toukhmanuk and Gatilperties in Armenia (the
“Properties”). Upon payment of the initial congiaigon as provided below, Global Gold and CRU aditeework together for twelve months
(the “12 Month Period”) to develop the Propertiagl @ause the Properties to be contributed to ajoievwenture company, whose identity and
terms will be mutually agreed, (the “JVC”). RasaaDubai-based principal advisory company, actesiode advisor on the transaction.
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Key terms included CRU paying initial consideratmfrs5,000,000 as a working capital commitment tob@l Gold payable by; a $500,000
advance immediately following the execution of Bwmation Agreement (the “Advance”); $1,400,0004dag following the satisfactory
completion of due diligence by CRU and the executibdefinitive documents in 30 days from the dztéhis Agreement; and $3,100,000
according to a separate schedule in advance arablgayithin 5 business days of the end of evergraddr month as needed.

On April 27, 2011, the Company entered into an egyent with Consolidated Resources Armenia, an ekaompresident Cayman Islands
company (“CRA"); and its affiliate CRU, (hereinafteollectively referred to as “CR”), to fund devphloent and form a joint venture on the
Properties (the “JV Agreement”). The JV Agreemeas entered pursuant to the Formation Agreement.

CR completed its due diligence with satisfactiand as of the date of the JV Agreement completeduhaing of the required $500,000
Advance. Upon the terms and subject to the cantditdf JV Agreement, CR was to complete the fundintpe remaining $4,500,000 of its
$5,000,000 working capital commitment related taklimanuk and Getik according to an agreed, resttitinding schedule which included
$1,400,000 payable following the execution of thirgement and the remaining $3,100,000 payabletbeeanext 12 months with payments
occurring within 5 business days of the end of eadandar month as needed. In addition, Mr. Jeffdarvin of CR was elected a member of
Global Gold Board of Directors and attended the @any's annual meeting on June 10, 2011. As ofidbee 31, 2011, the Company received
the full $5,000,000 funding from CR, although nattbe agreed schedule which interfered with thekhmanuk production program. Mr.
Marvin resigned from the Global Gold board on Faloyw24, 2012 for personal reasons.

Pursuant to the JV Agreement, Global Gold and OReatjto work together for twelve months (the “12rtoPeriod”) from the date of the JV
Agreement to develop the Properties, improve thartial performance and enhance shareholder vdloe JV Agreement was intended to
enable Global Gold to complete its current Toukhakgporoduction expansion to 300,000 tonnes per gadradvance exploration in Armenia.
Global Gold and CR agreed to form a new Joint Ven@ompany (“JVC”Yo be established by CR, subject to terms and tondimutually anc
reasonably agreed with Global Gold, provided tNE hall have no liabilities, obligations, contimj@r not, or commitments, except pursuant
to a shareholders’ agreement. Global Gold andr@&hded to integrate all of Global Gold’s Toukhmiaand Getik mining and exploration
operations into the JVC.

The JVC was to (i) own, develop and operate Toukiukand Getik, (ii) be a company listed on an ergesfully admitted to trading or be in
the process of being listed on such exchange wittually agreed terms and (iii) have no liabilitiesligations, contingent or not, or
commitments except pursuant to the shareholdeeeagwnt. The JVC was to issue new shares to thg@uonsuch that following any reverse
merger or initial public offering of JVC's sharéd?©"), Global Gold shall directly or indirectly kibthe greater of (a) 51% of the equity of JVC,
or (b) $40.0 million in newly issued stock of JV&@|culated based on the volume weighted average giVWAP") of such shares over the first
30 (thirty) days of trading following the IPO, assing issuance of all shares issuable in the IP@,amsuming issuance of all shares issuable as
management shares and conversion of the Notedlisswker the Instrument (as defined hereinafter)ahother convertible securities and
exercise of any warrants or other securities issn@dnnection with the IPO, such that if followiagy reverse merger or IPO, the value of $
million in newly issued shares based on VWAP of Bhares is greater than the Global Gold's 51% yquhership in JVC valued as above,
new shares in JVC will be issued to the Global Gridh that the aggregate value of Global Gold'saevslip in JVC is shares having a value of
$40.0 million based on VWAP, and the Company steatiain in control of the JVC following the publisting. Closing of the transaction was
explicitly subject to acquiring all necessary cariseincluding from ABB.

On February 6, 2012, the Company received consent §hareholders representing a majority over 65%smutstanding Common Stock
transfer the 100% interests in Me@mld, LLC and Getik Mining Company, LLC into GGCRilihg, LLC, a Delaware limited liabili
company, owned by a joint venture company, Globald@&onsolidated Resources Limited, a Jersey Isfaivéte limited company (‘GGCR;’
per the terms of the April 27, 2011 Joint Venturgrédement with Consolidated Resources Armenia, &mpk nonresident Cayman Islan
company (“CRA").The JVC was to issue new shares to the Companytkathollowing any reverse merger or initial pubtiffering of JVC'
shares ("IPQ"), Global Gold shall directly or inglitly hold the greater of (a) 51% of the equity)gfC, or (b) $40.0 million in newly issued stt
of JVC, calculated based on the volume weightedamesprice ("VWAP") of such shares over the fiBt(girty) days of trading following tt
IPO, assuming issuance of all shares issuableeinRD, and assuming issuance of all shares issaalieanagement shares and conversi
the Notes issued under the Instrument (as defiaed)all other convertible securities and exercfsany warrants oother securities issued
connection with the IPO, such that if following argwerse merger or IPO, the value of $40.0 milliomewly issued shares based on VWA
JVC shares is greater than the Global Gold's 518#tyeqwnership in JVC valued as above, new sharel/C will be issued to the Global G
such that the aggregate value of Global Gold's osinie in JVC is shares having a value of $40.0iamlbased on VWAP, and the Comp
shall remain in control of the JVC following thelghig listing, all as further described in exhibid.34 below. The Board of Directors of Gla
Gold Corporation previously approved the same #etisn, discussed above, on January 5, 2012.
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Based on the approval of the Board of Director&lwbal Gold Corporation (“GGC” and “the Company&ceived on January 5, 2012 and on
receiving consent from its shareholders represgmuer a 65% majority of its outstanding Commonc&ton February 6, 2012, as the Company
reported on Form 8-K dated February 9, 2012, tosfiexr the 100% interest in Mego-Gold, LLC (“Megaida*MG”) and Getik Mining

Company, LLC (“Getik”) into GGCR Mining, LLC, a Dalvare limited liability company (“GGCR Mining”), aved by a joint venture company,
Global Gold Consolidated Resources Limited, a Jeidand private limited company (“GGCR?”), per tteems of the April 27, 2011 Joint
Venture Agreement with Consolidated Resources Arapem exempt non-resident Cayman Islands compg@&®A”). The Company entered
into the following agreements on or about Febrd#y2012 updating previous agreements, all asdudbscribed in the exhibits attached, or
following dates:

Shareholders Agreement for GGCR dated Februargd® (Exhibit 10.36)

Supplemental Letter dated February 19, 2012 (kixhD.37)

Getik Assignment and Assumption Agreement datdsrérary 19, 2012 (Exhibit 10.38)

MG Assignment and Assumption Agreement dated daelprl9, 2012 (Exhibit 10.39)

Guaranty dated February 19, 2012 (by GGC to Cf&hibit 10.40)

Guaranty dated February 19, 2012 (by GGCR MininGRA) (Exhibit 10.41)

Security Agreement dated February 19, 2012 (byB@nd GGCR Mining to CRA) (Exhibit 10.42)

Action by Written Consent of the Sole Member @GR Mining, LLC dated February 19, 2012 (Exhibit43%)
Certificate of Global Gold Corporation dated Rebyy 19, 2012 (Exhibit 10.44)

Global Gold Consolidated Resources Limited Regéxt Company No 109058 Written resolutions by faithe directors of the
Company (Exhibit 10.45)

e Action by Written Consent of the Board of Managef GGCR Mining, LLC (Exhibit 10.46)

Key terms included that Global Gold Corporationlwetain 51% of the shares of GGCR, which will beudsidiary of the Company, per the
terms of the April 27, 2011 Joint Venture Agreemastipproved and described above. The Board etirs of GGCR Mining would be
comprised of Van Krikorian, from GGC, Prem Premfigm CRA, and three non-executive independentttirs to be selected in the future.
Pending the closing, if any, GGM was designatethasnanager of the Toukhmanuk and Getik propentiéh,reasonable costs incurred by
GGM with respect thereto being passed through t€RBGand GGCR Mining, as applicable, for reimbursetneConsolidated failed to meet
several of its obligations, the required conserABB Bank was not issued, GGCR was not capitalméfticiently to meet project companies’
obligations, and a mutually agreed public listidfgong terms and other requirements were not matiding the failure to reimburse GGM. As
of June 30, 2012, despite Global Gold’s desirexfzedite closing, the closing has not occurred setiiement discussions are ongoing.

Rent Agreements

The Company rented office space in a commerciddlimg at 45 East Putnam Avenue, Greenwich, CT whtesigned a 5-year lease starting on
March 1, 2006 at a starting annual rental costdf,800. On October 1, 2006, the Company expandeaiffite space by assuming the lease of
the adjacent office space. The assumed lease ssmthien one year remaining, through September(8®, 2t an annual rental cost of
$19,500. The assumed lease was extended for droadtyear through September 30, 2009 at an dmeungal cost of $22,860 for that

period. The assumed lease was further extendedgh October 15, 2009 at which point the Compaagated the additional space. Messrs.
Gallagher and Krikorian gave personal guarante¢éseo€ompany's performance for the first two yedithe lease. On April 1, 2011, the
Company moved its corporate headquarters from @riebnCT to 555 Theodore Fremd Avenue, Rye, NY 1058he new lease had annual
costs of; $63,045 in year 1, $64,212.50 in ye&65,380 in year 3, $66,547 in year 4, and $67,Al&ar 5.
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13. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

In 2006, GGH, which was the license holder forlamkavan and Marjan properties, was the subjecbwtipt and improper demands and
threats from the now former Minister of the Minjstof Environment and Natural Resources of ArmeXardan Ayvazian. The Company
reported this situation to the appropriate autfesiin Armenia and in the United States. Althougg Minister took the position that the licenses
at Hankavan and Marjan were terminated, other Aramegovernmental officials assured the Companyéocontrary and Armenian public
records confirmed the continuing validity of theelhses. The Company received independent legabagithat all of its licenses were valid and
remained in full force and effect, continued to lat those properties, and engaged internatiorthlaral counsel to pursue prosecution of the
illegal and corrupt practices directed againstsiesidiary, including international arbitration. @ovember 7, 2006, the Company initiated the
thirty-day good faith negotiating period (whichaigprerequisite to filing for international arbifiat under the 2003 SHA, LLC Share Purchase
Agreement) with the three named shareholders aagmviously undisclosed principal, Mr. Ayvaziafihe Company filed for arbitration under
the rules under the International Chamber of Coromdreadquartered in Paris, France ("ICC"), on Béez 29, 2006. The forum for this
arbitration is New York City, and the hearing isremtly still pending. On June 25, 2008, the FatiBistrict Court for the Southern District of
New York ruled that Mr. Ayvazian was required tgepr as a respondent in the ICC arbitration. Qnedeber 5, 2008, the ICC Internatiol
Court of Arbitration ruled that Mr. Ayvazian shak a party in accordance with the decision renderedlune 25, 2008 by the Federal District
Court for the Southern District of New York. Sufaently, in December 2011 the ICC Tribunal decittepgroceed only with the three named
shareholders; in March 2012, GGM filed an actiofréderal District Court pursuant to that Court’sidiens for damages against Ayvazian
and/or to conform the ICC Tribunal to the precedeand a certificate of default has been enterdavior of the Company. In addition, and
based on the US Armenia Bilateral Investment Tre@®M filed a request for arbitration against trepRblic of Armenia for the actions of the
former Minister of Environment and Natural Resosragth the International Centre for Settlementrofdstment Disputes, which is a compotr
agency of the World Bank in Washington, D.C. ("IOS)}, on January 29, 2007. On August 31, 2007, tbegghment of Armenia and GGM
jointly issued the following statement, "{they} jaly announce that they have suspended the ICSiration pending conclusion of a detail
settlement agreement. The parties have reachedfideotial agreement in principle, and anticipdtattthe final settlement agreement will be
reached within 10 days of this announcement." Tomg@any has learned from public records that Geolriolg Ltd., through an affiliate, has
become the sole shareholder of an Armenian Compgaalgen Ore, LLC, which was granted alicense fonktéevan. GeoProMining Ltd. is
subject to the 20% obligations as successor tditetResources, Ltd. As of February 25, 2008, G&iered into a conditional, confidential
settlement agreement with the Government of theuBlepof Armenia to discontinue the ICSID arbitmatiproceedings, which were discontin
as of May 2, 2008. This agreement does not affecpending ICC arbitration or litigation involvirsgmilar subject matter.

Based on a representation by Caldera, on Juned1D, &lobal Gold Corporation and its subsidiary, Mg&LC (collectively “Global”) and
Caldera Resources, Inc. (“Caldera”) announced TSagproval of their March 24, 2010 joint ventureesgnent to explore and bring the Marjan
property into commercial production. As previousdported, the property is held with a twenty-fixgar “special mining license,” effective
April 22, 2008, and expiring April 22, 2033, whielxpanded the prior license term and substantiatlyeiased the license area. The license
required payments of annual governmental feeslamg@érformance of work at the property as submétetiapproved in the mining plan, which
includes mining of 50,000 tonnes of mineralizeckrper year, as well as exploration work to havetaithl reserves approved under Armenian
Law in order to maintain the licenses in good siagd Caldera advised Global as well as governnhenitiforities that it would not be complyi
with the work requirements which prompted 90 daynieation notices from the government and the Oetal) 2010 joint venture termination
notice from Global, which Global had agreed to kéfeptermination notice confidential until Octoldér, 2010.

The joint venture agreement provided that Caldevalévbe solely responsible for license complianog @onducting the approved mining plan,
and that “[i]n the event that Caldera does nots amtherwise unable to, pursue this project andtpaylobal Gold the amounts provided for
hereunder, Caldera’s rights to the Property andltaees of Marjai©aldera Mining LLC shall be forfeited and repla¢gda Net Smelter Royal
(the “NSR”).” Caldera did not meet the thresholceton any NSR under the agreement, and its notibeease non-compliance as well as its
failure to pay resulted in an automatic terminatdiits rights by operation of the agreement. @geeement provided that Caldera would deliver
500,000 of its shares to Global, “subject to fiapprovals of this agreement by the TSX Venture Brge.” Caldera advised that the TSX
Venture Exchange approval was issued in June aflit@afailed to deliver the shares. Subject t@® @&y extension if it could not raise the
funds in capital markets, Caldera agreed to mak&08,000 payment to the Company on September 3@ &0d December 31, 2010; $250,000
on March 30, 2011, June 30, 2011, September 30, ZWdcember 30, 2011, March 30, 2012, June 30,,204® September 30, 2012; and
$500,000 on December 31, 2012. Caldera raisettmuff funds, but did not make these payments.
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The agreement was subject to approval by the TShure Exchange and the Board of Directors of tepeetive companies. Caldera fun
informed the Company that it received TSX Ventukelange approval on the transaction, which subsglyueroved to be untrue. On Octo
7, 2010, the Company terminated the Marjan JV fald€ra’s non-payment and non-performance as weCalderas illegal registrations

Armenia and other actions. In October 2010, Caldéded for arbitration in New York City. In Sepidber 2010, at Calde’invitation, th
Company filed to reverse the illegal registratiomArmenia. That litigation and the New York arbtion were subsequently resolved in favc
the Company, restoring the Company’s 100% ownershigarjan.

In a final, non-appealable decision issued ancctffe February 8, 2012, the Armenian Court of Cageaffirmed the July 29, 2011 Armenian
trial court and December 12, 2012 Court of Appeaisisions which ruled that Caldera's registratioth assumption of control through unilateral
charter changes of the Marjan Mine and Marjan Minfdompany, LLC were illegal and that ownershipsdslly with GGM. The official
versions of the Armenian Court decisions are ab#léhrough http://www.datalex.am/

On March 29, 2012, in the independent New York @ilyitration case Global Gold received a favorableg in its arbitration proceeding in
New York with Caldera, see Exhibit 10.48. The a#itr issued a Partial Final Award which ordersNtejan Property in Armenia to revert
GGM based on the two failures to meet conditiorxedent to the March 24, 2010 agreement. FirdtleCafailed and refused to deliver the
500,000 shares to Global. Second, Caldera diduimhi the final joint venture agreement to the T8Xer approval until the middle of the
arbitration proceedings, instead relying on sugirdesersions in its regulatory submissions and stiilbigy “Form 5Cs” to the TSX-V which
were false representations of Caldera’s obligattorfslobal.

The Partial Award states “By misrepresenting itgrpant obligations to the TSX-V, Caldera painte@lad financial picture to the TSX-V and
the investing public.” In addition, the arbitrafound that had he not come to the conclusions ed@aldera and its officers effectively
breached the JV Agreement and the terms of thetéihiiiability Agreement” in multiple ways, includinCaldera’s failure to make quarterly
payments to Global.

The Partial Award ordered reversion of the Marjaoperty to Global, return of amounts paid to GlotalCaldera returned as the JV Agreement
did not go into effect, an Net Smelter Royalty @ld&ra of 0.5% for each tranche of $1 million aljuspent on the property, and further
proceedings on Global’'s claims for damages withtamdl hearings currently set to begin July 11120 As previously reported, Global's
records establish that Caldera did not spend $liomibn the Marjan property. Additionally, tax uens filed by Caldera in Armenia report less
than $400,000 spent on the property. The pagib#ration agreement further provides that therawshall be final and non-appealabkid foi
the award of attorney fees, arbitratofées, and other costs. In accordance with thérAtor's order and the JV agreement, Global Galslfilec

to confirm the Partial Final Award in Federal Cou@aldera is opposing the confirmation.

As of the filing date of this report, Global hagstablished control of Marjan Mining Company whishhe license holder of the Marjan
property. The Company's control has not been ksitiglol over certain property, records, or otheetsssiaintained by Caldera such as wareh
and drill core as Caldera has failed to turn owehsproperty. The Company is proceeding with ptanmsine in compliance with the mining
license, and implement additional exploration te llest of its ability. Global is also taking legation to protect its rights in an adjacent tersi
indentified as “Marjan West” which Caldera has pelglclaimed to have a license in but accordingublic, on-line government records, the
company holding the license is 100% owned by amqgibeson.

The Company is subject to various legal proceedamgiclaims that arise in the ordinary course afress. In the opinion of management, the
amount of any ultimate liability with respect tete actions will not materially affect the Compangdnsolidated financial statements or results
of operations. The Company has been brought tat bguseveral disgruntled former employees andreatirs for unpaid salaries and invoices,
respectively, as well as some penalties for nomeat which totals approximately $175,000 at June28@2 and December 31, 2011. The
Company has recorded a liability for the actualaid@mounts due to these individuals of approxiiy&t85,000 at June 30, 2012 and
December 31, 2011. The Company is currently, aiiccantinue to, vigorously defend its positionéourts against these claims that are without
merit. The Company is also negotiating directlyhwhese individuals outside of the courts in atieto settle based on the amounts of the actua
amounts due as recorded by the Company in excHfangeompt and full payment.
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14. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

In accordance with ASC 855, “Subsequent Eventg'Gbmpany evaluated subsequent events after thedeasheet date of June 30, 2012
through August 17, 2012.

Effective July 1, 2012, the Company entered emplaynagreement extensions with Ashot BoghossianvamdKrikorian, and effective August
1, 2012, with Jan Dulman as recommended by the @agip Compensation Committee and approved by tredof Directors on June 15,
2012. The agreements are extended for an additioreee years under the same terms except for MimBn who will receive an annual salary
of $165,000, which constitutes a $15,000 raiseypar, and an additional 25,000 restricted sharélseo€ompany’s Common Stock annually in
lieu of the option grants in his prior contract lmegng August 1, 2012 when the extension begingvforDulman. All shares issued under these
extensions will vest in equal semi-annual instatitseover the term of the employment agreements.

On July 1, 2012 the Company granted performanceetedtion bonus awards of restricted shares o€trapany’s Common Stock to Van
Krikorian (500,000 shares) and Jan Dulman (2508@0es) as recommended by the Company’s Compem&&timmittee and approved by the
Board of Directors on June 15, 2012. All shasssieéd under this bonus award will vest in equal-semual installments over the next two
years through June 30, 2014.

In July and August 2012, one of the Company's Bars¢ Drury Gallagher, made $18,000 of interest fomns to the Company which remain
unpaid as of the date of this filing.

ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OR PLA N OF OPERATION

When used in this discussion, the words "expect{gel(s)", "believe(s)", "will", "may", "anticip@(s)" and similar expressions are intended to
identify forward-looking statements. Such stateraeme subject to certain risks and uncertaintiésclwcould cause actual results to differ
materially from those projected. Readers are caatinot to place undue reliance on these forwasHlihg statements, and are urged to carefully
review and consider the various disclosures elsesvimethis Form 10-Q. The provision of Section 23fAhe Securities Act of 1933 and Section
21 of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934 sgly to any forward looking information in thisifn 10-Q.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 AND SIX MONTHS ENDEDJUNE 30, 2011

During the six month period ended June 30, 2012281d the Company did not have any sales becahss ot constructed a new tailings dam
which is necessary to re-commence production.

During the six month period ended June 30, 2012 bmpany's administrative and other expenses $&24.7,371 which represented an

increase of $867,099 from $1,350,272 in the samiegéast year. The expense increase was primatifibutable increased legal expenses of
$484,414, payroll expense of $52,187, travel expai$18,241 and consulting expense of $251,064.
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During the six month period ended June 30, 2012 bmpany's mine exploration costs were $701,5lithalepresented an increase of
$224,935 from $476,576 in the same period last.y&le expense increase was attributable to threased activity at the Toukhmanuk Propt
of $224,935.

During the six month period ended June 30, 2012 bmpany's amortization and depreciation expenses $289,954 which represented a
decrease of $139,073 from $429,027 in the samegéast year. The expense decrease was primathillguagble to a decrease in depreciation
expense of $97,494 and a decrease in amortizatjpense of $41,579.

During the six month period ended June 30, 2012 bmpany had interest expense of $152,983 whjmesented a decrease of $71,333 from
$224,316 in the same period last year. The expdesease was attributable to a decrease in inExpsnse of $66,358 on a secured line of
credit due principal payments made and a decrdanéecest expense of $8,130 on wages payable.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
As of June 30, 2012, the Company's total assets $&897,632, of which $152,712 consisted of castash equivalents.
The Company's expected plan of operation for thenckar year 2012 is:

(a) To build a new tailings dam and recommenceaipey expanded mining operations at Toukhmanuletterate income from offering
services from the ISO certified lab operating atlamanuk, and to continue to explore this prop&rtgonfirm and develop historical reserve
reports, to explore and develop the Getik proper#xrmenia and to generate cash flow and estalgiidti, silver and other reserves;

(b) To implement exploration recommendations frowe ®ctober 17, 2011 Behre Dolbear technical repsrtjpdated, related to the Toukhme
and Getik properties;

(c) To mine, develop, and explore at the Marjaspprty in Armenia;

(d) To implement the sale agreement, as amendéd Geinventus/Amarant Mining/Alluvia/Ulander in Césil
(e) To review and acquire additional mineral begpnoperties in Chile, Armenia, and other countrasl

(f) Pursue additional financing through privategaiments, debt and/or joint ventures.

(g) While the Company has engaged in settlementidgons with Consolidated Resources over theré&ttufinance, perform, and close the
joint venture, those discussions have been unssitdethe Company retains title and operationaltcgrover the Toukhmanuk and Ge
properties it will continue to consider proceedwith CR or otherwise developing the properties wipilirsuing a settlement that will allow the
joint venture to proceel

The Company retained the right until December 8092to elect to participate at a level of up to 20%h Sterlite Gold Ltd. or any of its
affiliates in any exploration project undertakerAinmenia. This agreement is governed by New Yovk damd includes New York courts as
choice of forum. On October 2, 2006, Vedanta ResesiPIc announced that its tender offer to takérobof Sterlite Gold Ltd. was successful
which made it a successor to the twenty percetticgzation with Sterlite Gold Ltd. In September Z00/edanta (and Sterlite) announced that
they had closed a stock sale transaction with Gadming Ltd., which made GeoProMining Ltd. andatfiliates the successors to the 20%
participation right. The Company continues to eewviegal options to enforce the 20% right.

The Company retains the right to participate up@® in any new projects undertaken by the Armen@npany Sipan 1, LLC and successor
and affiliates of Iberian Resources Limited, whinbrged with Tamaya Resources Limited, in Armenigi| dhugust 15, 2015. In addition, the
Company has a 2.5% NSR royalty on production froenltichkvaz-Tei and Terterasar mines as well am fany mining propertiesina 20 T
kilometer radius of the town of Aigedzor in south&rmenia. On February 28, 2007, Iberian Resou@éeited announced its merger with
Tamaya Resources Limited. However, as of Dece@bg?008, Iberian Resources and Tamaya filed fokhgptcy in Australia and the
Company has taken action to protect its rights2009, the bankruptcy administrators sold the shafé&ipan 1, LLC to Terranova Overseas
company organized in the United Arab Emirates whichinformation and belief, includes local andefgn investors and which also assume:
continuing obligations of Sipan 1, LLC to Globall@o
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The Company also anticipates spending additiomad$un Armenia and Chile for further exploratiordatevelopment of its other properties as
well as acquisition of new properties. The Compamglso reviewing new technologies in exploratoml processing. The Company anticipates
that it will issue additional equity or debt todimce its planned activities. The Company antieip#iiat it might obtain additional financing from
the remaining holders of its Warrants to purcha860,000 shares of Common Stock of the Company akarcise price of $0.10 per share,
which will provide for an additional $165,000 bhese warrants have not been exercised as of thefittis filing.

The Company may engage in research and developgelated to exploration and processing during 2@t8, is purchasing processing plant
equipment assets to expand production.

The Company has received a going concern opinim fts independent public accounting firm. Thisame that our auditors believe that tt
is doubt that we can continue as angming business for the next twelve months unlessaisge additional capital to pay our bills. Ths
because the Company has not generated any subktantnues. The Company has been able to corbased upon its receipt of funds fr
the issuance of equity securities and by acquiassets or paying expenses by issuing stock, delsgle of assets. The Company's contil
existence is dependent upon its continued abiitsatse funds through the issuance of securitiemaddement's plans in this regard are to o
other financing until profitable operation and pive cash flow are achieved and maintained.

Besides the funding from agreements with Amarantiij Ltd. and Contender Kapital, AB there are mmfcommitments from third parties to
provide additional financing and the Company neatititional funds in order to conduct any active imjdevelopment and production
operations in the foreseeable future. Especialligint of the international financial crisis stagiin 2008, there can be no assurance that any
financing for acquisitions or future projects vk available for such purposes or that such fimaydf available, would be on terms favorable or
acceptable to the Company.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We do not have any off-balance sheet arrangemleatfiive, or are reasonably likely to have, a otwefuture effect on our financial
condition, changes in financial condition, revenaesxpenses, results or operations, liquidity jtehpxpenditures or capital resources that is
material to investors.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

There have been no material changes to our craimabunting policies and estimates from the infdiomaprovided in Item 7,
"Management's Discussion and Analysis of FinanC@tdition and Results of Operations”, includedun Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
fiscal year ended December 31, 2011.

New Accounting Standarc

Please see Note 2 of the Notes to Financial Statesnire this quarterly report concerning new accmgnstandards.
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Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures Alout Market Risk

The Company does not hold any market risk sensitisguments nor does it have any foreign currenahange agreements. The Company
maintains an inventory of unprocessed ore and gaftentrate which are carried on the balance ste842,750 and $545,660, respectively,
with our Armenian subsidiary Mego-Gold LLC. Ther@many does not maintain any commodity hedges ardgtarrangements with respect to
this unprocessed ore.

Financial instruments which potentially subject @@mpany to concentrations of credit risk consistgipally of cash. The Company places its
cash with high credit quality financial instituti®in the United States and Armenia. Bank depasitse United States did not exceed federally
insured limits as of June 30, 2012 and Decembe2@1]. As of June 30, 2012 and December 31, 26&ICompany had approximately
$145,000 and $16,300, respectively, in Armeniarklsiposits which may not be insured. The Compasynisd experienced any losses in such
accounts through June 30, 2012 and as of the fi#tiésdiling.

The majority of the Company's present activitiesiarArmenia. As with all types of internationaldimess operations, currency fluctuations,
exchange controls, restrictions on foreign investinehanges to tax regimes, political action anlitipal instability could impair the value of tt
Company's investments.

Item 4. Controls and Procedures.
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Under the supervision and with the participatiomof management, including our principal executffecer and principal financial officer, we
conducted an evaluation of our disclosure contrals procedures, as such term is defined under Ra€l5(e) and Rule 15d-15(e) promulgated
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as apte(itExchange Act"), as of June 30, 2012. Basethigrevaluation, our principal executive
officer and principal financial officer have condkd that our disclosure controls and proceduresféeetive to ensure that information required
to be disclosed by us in the reports we file omsititnnder the Exchange Act is recorded, processadmarized, and reported within the time
periods specified in the Securities and Exchangar@ission's rules and forms and that our discloancecontrols are designed to ensure that
information required to be disclosed by us in tgarts that we file or submit under the Exchangeigiaccumulated and communicated to our
management, including our principal executive @ffiand principal financial officer, or persons penfiing similar functions, as appropriate to
allow timely decisions regarding required disclasur

Management's internal control report over finanglorting was not subject to attestation by thex@any's independent registered public
accounting firm pursuant to temporary rules of Seeurities and Exchange Commission that permiCirapany to provide only management's
report.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

There were no changes in our internal control déwmancial reporting that occurred during our mastantly completed fiscal quarter that has

materially affected, or is reasonably likely to evélly affect, our internal control over financigporting except raw material and work in
process physical inventories are being performedeaénd of each quarter.
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PART Il - OTHER INFORMATION
Item 1. Legal Proceedings.

In 2006, GGH, which was the license holder forlfamkavan and Marjan properties, was the subjecbwfipt and improper demands and
threats from the now former Minister of the Minjsbf Environment and Natural Resources of Arme¥adan Ayvazian. The Company
reported this situation to the appropriate autfesiin Armenia and in the United States. Althougg Minister took the position that the licenses
at Hankavan and Marjan were terminated, other Aramegovernmental officials assured the Companyéocontrary and Armenian public
records confirmed the continuing validity of theelhses. The Company received independent legabagithat all of its licenses were valid and
remained in full force and effect, continued to lwat those properties, and engaged internatiorthlaral counsel to pursue prosecution of the
illegal and corrupt practices directed againstsiesidiary, including international arbitration. @ovember 7, 2006, the Company initiated the
thirty-day good faith negotiating period (whichaigprerequisite to filing for international arbifiat under the 2003 SHA, LLC Share Purchase
Agreement) with the three named shareholders aagmviously undisclosed principal, Mr. Ayvaziafihe Company filed for arbitration under
the rules under the International Chamber of Coromeéreadquartered in Paris, France ("ICC"), on Bez 29, 2006. The forum for this
arbitration is New York City, and the hearing isremtly still pending. On June 25, 2008, the FabiBistrict Court for the Southern District of
New York ruled that Mr. Ayvazian was required tgepr as a respondent in the ICC arbitration. Qnedeber 5, 2008, the ICC Internatiol
Court of Arbitration ruled that Mr. Ayvazian shak a party in accordance with the decision renderedune 25, 2008 by the Federal District
Court for the Southern District of New York. Sufaently, in December 2011 the ICC Tribunal decittepgroceed only with the three named
shareholders; in March 2012, GGM filed an actiofréderal District Court pursuant to that Court’sidiens for damages against Ayvazian
and/or to conform the ICC Tribunal to the precedeand a certificate of default has been enterdavior of the Company. In addition, and
based on the US Armenia Bilateral Investment Tre@®$M filed a request for arbitration against trepRblic of Armenia for the actions of the
former Minister of Environment and Natural Resosraagth the International Centre for Settlementrofdstment Disputes, which is a compotr
agency of the World Bank in Washington, D.C. ("I0S)], on January 29, 2007. On August 31, 2007, tbgegnment of Armenia and GGM
jointly issued the following statement, "{they} jaly announce that they havsuspended the ICSID arbitration pending conclusioa detailed
settlement agreement. The parties have reachedfideotial agreement in principle, and anticipdtattthe final settlement agreement will be
reached within 10 days of this announcement." Tomg@any has learned from public records that Geolriolg Ltd., through an affiliate, has
become the sole shareholder of an Armenian Comgaalgen Ore, LLC, which was granted alicense fonktéevan. GeoProMining Ltd. is
subject to the 20% obligations as successor tditetResources, Ltd. As of February 25, 2008, G&iered into a conditional, confidential
settlement agreement with the Government of theuBlepof Armenia to discontinue the ICSID arbitmatiproceedings, which were discontin
as of May 2, 2008. This agreement does not affecpending ICC arbitration or litigation involvirsgmilar subject matter.

Based on a representation by Caldera, on Jun201D, Global Gold Corporation and its subsidiar@Ng LLC (collectively “Global”) and
Caldera Resources, Inc. (“Caldera”) announced TSapproval of their March 24, 2010 joint ventureesggnent to explore and bring the Marjan
property into commercial production. As previousdported, the property is held with a twenty-firgar “special mining license,” effective
April 22, 2008, and expiring April 22, 2033, whielxpanded the prior license term and substantiatlyeiased the license area. The license
required payments of annual governmental feeslamg@érformance of work at the property as submétetiapproved in the mining plan, which
includes mining of 50,000 tonnes of mineralizeckrper year, as well as exploration work to havetaithl reserves approved under Armenian
Law in order to maintain the licenses in good siagd Caldera advised Global as well as governnhenitiforities that it would not be complyi
with the work requirements which prompted 90 daynieation notices from the government and the Oetal) 2010 joint venture termination
notice from Global, which Global had agreed to késeptermination notice confidential until Octoldér, 2010.

The joint venture agreement provided that Caldevalevbe solely responsible for license complianog @onducting the approved mining plan,
and that “[i]n the event that Caldera does nots amtherwise unable to, pursue this project andtpaylobal Gold the amounts provided for
hereunder, Caldera’s rights to the Property andltaees of Marjai©aldera Mining LLC shall be forfeited and replatgda Net Smelter Royal
(the “NSR”).” Caldera did not meet the thresholceton any NSR under the agreement, and its notibeease non-compliance as well as its
failure to pay resulted in an automatic terminatdiits rights by operation of the agreement. &geeement provided that Caldera would deliver
500,000 of its shares to Global, “subject to fiapprovals of this agreement by the TSX Venture Brgle.” Caldera advised that the TSX
Venture Exchange approval was issued in June alit@afailed to deliver the shares. Subject t@ @&y extension if it could not raise the
funds in capital markets, Caldera agreed to m&i&08,000 payment to the Company on September 3@ 20d December 31, 2010; $250,000
on March 30, 2011, June 30, 2011, September 3d,, IMdcember 30, 2011, March 30, 2012, June 30,,20® September 30, 2012; and
$500,000 on December 31, 2012. Caldera raisettwmuff funds, but did not make these payments.
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The agreement was subject to approval by the TShure Exchange and the Board of Directors of tepeetive companies. Caldera fun
informed the Company that it received TSX Ventukelange approval on the transaction, which subsglyueroved to be untrue. On Octo
7, 2010, the Company terminated the Marjan JV fald€ra’s non-payment and non-performance as weCalderas illegal registrations

Armenia and other actions. In October 2010, Caldéded for arbitration in New York City. In Sepidber 2010, at Calde’invitation, th
Company filed to reverse the illegal registratiomArmenia. That litigation and the New York arbtion were subsequently resolved in favc
the Company, restoring the Company’s 100% ownershigarjan.

In a final, non-appealable decision issued ancctffe February 8, 2012, the Armenian Court of Cageaffirmed the July 29, 2011 Armenian
trial court and December 12, 2012 Court of Appeaisisions which ruled that Caldera's registratioth assumption of control through unilateral
charter changes of the Marjan Mine and Marjan Minfdompany, LLC were illegal and that ownershipsdslly with GGM. The official
versions of the Armenian Court decisions are ab#léhrough http://www.datalex.am/

On March 29, 2012, in the independent New York @ilyitration case Global Gold received a favorableg in its arbitration proceeding in
New York with Caldera, see Exhibit 10.48. The a#itr issued a Partial Final Award which ordersNtejan Property in Armenia to revert
GGM based on the two failures to meet conditiorxedent to the March 24, 2010 agreement. FirdtleCafailed and refused to deliver the
500,000 shares to Global. Second, Caldera diduimhi the final joint venture agreement to the T8Xer approval until the middle of the
arbitration proceedings, instead relying on sugirdesersions in its regulatory submissions and stiilbigy “Form 5Cs” to the TSX-V which
were false representations of Caldera’s obligattorfslobal.

The Partial Award states “By misrepresenting itgrpant obligations to the TSX-V, Caldera painte@lad financial picture to the TSX-V and
the investing public.” In addition, the arbitrafound that had he not come to the conclusions ed@aldera and its officers effectively
breached the JV Agreement and the terms of thetéihiiiability Agreement” in multiple ways, includinCaldera’s failure to make quarterly
payments to Global.

The partial award orders reversion of the Marjaspprty to Global, return of amounts paid to GldalCaldera returned as the JV Agreement
did not go into effect, an Net Smelter Royalty tldera of 0.5% for each tranche of $1 million aljuspent on the property, and further
proceedings on Global’'s claims for damages withtamdl hearings currently set to begin July 11120 As previously reported, Global's
records establish that Caldera did not spend $liomibn the Marjan property. Additionally, tax uens filed by Caldera in Armenia report less
than $400,000 spent on the property. The pagib#ration agreement further provides that therawshall be final and non-appealabkid foi
the award of attorney fees, arbitratofées, and other costs. In accordance with thérAtor's order and the JV agreement, Global Galslfilec
to confirm the Partial Final Award in Federal Cou@aldera is opposing the confirmation.

As of the filing date of this report, Global hagstablished control of Marjan Mining Company whishhe license holder of the Marjan
property. The Company's control has not been ksitiglol over certain property, records, or otheetsssiaintained by Caldera such as wareh
and drill core as Caldera has failed to turn owehsproperty. The Company is proceeding with ptanmsine in compliance with the mining
license, and implement additional exploration te llest of its ability. Global is also taking legation to protect its rights in an adjacent tersi
indentified as “Marjan West” which Caldera has pelglclaimed to have a license in but accordingublic, on-line government records, the
company holding the license is 100% owned by amqgibeson.

The Company is subject to various legal proceedamgiclaims that arise in the ordinary course afress. In the opinion of management, the
amount of any ultimate liability with respect tete actions will not materially affect the Compangdnsolidated financial statements or results
of operations. The Company has been brought tat bguseveral disgruntled former employees andreatirs for unpaid salaries and invoices,
respectively, as well as some penalties for nomeat which totals approximately $175,000 at June28@2 and December 31, 2011. The
Company has recorded a liability for the actualaid@mounts due to these individuals of approxiiy&t85,000 at June 30, 2012 and
December 31, 2011. The Company is currently, aiiccantinue to, vigorously defend its positionéourts against these claims that are without
merit. The Company is also negotiating directlyhwhese individuals outside of the courts in atieto settle based on the amounts of the actua
amounts due as recorded by the Company in excHfangeompt and full payment.
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Item 1A. Risk Factors

Not Applicable

Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities andse of Proceeds.

None

Item 3. Defaults Upon Senior Securities.

None

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures

Not Applicable

Item 5. Other Information.

On February 6, 2012, the Company received consemt $hareholders representing a majority over 66%s @utstanding Common Stock to
transfer the 100% interest in Me@mnld, LLC and Getik Mining Company, LLC into GGCRimihg, LLC, a Delaware limited liability compan
owned by a joint venture company, Global Gold Cdidated Resources Limited, a Jersey Island priliatéed company (‘GGCR”), per the
terms of the April 27, 2011 Joint Venture Agreemeith Consolidated Resources Armenia, an exempirasident Cayman Islands company

(“CRA"). Global Gold Corporation will retain 51% dlie shares of GGCR, which will be a subsidiaryhef Company, with cash contributions
being made by CRA, which will hold a minority inést in GGCR.
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Iltem 6. Exhibits.

The following documents are filed as part of tlépart:

Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements oXapany, including Balance Sheets as of June@I® and as of December 31, 2012;
Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Logedahree months ended June 30, 2012 and Jurg® B0, and for the exploration stage
period from January 1, 1995 through June 30, 284&,Statements of Cash Flows for the three momttisceJune 30, 2012 and June 30, 2011,
and for the exploration stage period from Janua®5 through June 30, 2012 and the Exhibits whrehlisted on the Exhibit Index

Exhibit 3.1

Exhibit 3.2

Exhibit 10.3

Exhibit 10.4

Exhibit 10.8

Exhibit 10.10

Exhibit 10.11

Exhibit 10.14

Exhibit 10.15

Exhibit 10.16

Exhibit 10.17

Exhibit 10.18

Exhibit 10.19

Exhibit 10.20

Exhibit 10.21

Exhibit 10.22

Exhibit 10.23

Amended and Restated Certificatenabtporation of the Company, effective NovemberZim3. (1)

Amended and Restated Bylaws of thenGany, effective November 20, 2003. (2)

Agreement to Acquire Option on Caute Pond Property dated April 12, 2007. (3)

First Amendment of the January ZB)& Share Purchase Agreement (Athelea Investmelat®d as of May 30, 2007. (4)
Nominating and Governance Charter dated June 1%,.28)

Commitment to Contribute Mining @assion to a Contractual Mining Company (Unoffid&alglish Translation) dated as of
August 19, 2007. (6)

Contractual Mining Company Agreetng@mnofficial English Translation) dated as of Qmto 29, 2007. (7)
Royalty Agreement on Cochrane PBrmperty, Newfoundland dated as of October 17, 2(%)8
Private Placement Agreement, d&tedember 8, 2008. (9)

Material Contract — Amendment obfzl Gold Valdivia Joint Venture Terms, SeparatibfProperties and Royalty
Agreement (10)

Employment Agreement, dated as wfudst 11, 2009, by and between Global Gold Corpmrand Van Krikorian. (11)
Employment Agreement, dated as ofési 11, 2009, by and between GGM, LLC and Ashatassian. (12)
Employment Agreement, dated as wduést 11, 2009, by and between Global Gold Cormratnd Jan Dulman. (13)
Employment Agreement, dated as ududst 11, 2009, by and between Global Gold Corporatnd Lester Caesar. (14)

Armenian State Natural Resourcesrfay Decision N234 on the Recalculation of Resefwe$oukhmanuk — delivered
Friday, November 13, 2009 — Partial Unofficial Tskation . (15)

Material Contract — Marjan Joint \ere Agreement dated as of December 18, 2009. (16)

Material Contract — Mego Gold, LL®I@ Concentrate Supply Contract with Industrial Btials SA dated as of February 25,
2010. (17)
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Exhibit 10.24

Exhibit 10.25

Exhibit 10.26

Exhibit 10.27

Exhibit 10.28

Exhibit 10.29

Exhibit 10.30

Exhibit 10.31

Exhibit 10.32

Exhibit 10.33

Exhibit 10.34

Exhibit 10.35

Exhibit 10.36

Exhibit 10.37

Exhibit 10.38

Exhibit 10.39

Exhibit 10.40

Exhibit 10.41

Exhibit 10.42

Material Contract — Mego Gold, LL@csirity Agreement with Industrial Minerals SA dagelof February 25, 2010. (18)
Material Contract — Global Gold Coration Guarantee to Industrial Minerals SA datedfaFebruary 25, 2010. (19)
Material Contract — Marjan Joint \fere Agreement dated as of March 24, 2010. (20)

Material Contract — (Unofficial Ergi Translation) Mego Gold, LLC non revolving creliie from Armbusinessbank signed
March 26, 2010. (21)

Employment Agreement, dated as ofusai 19, 2010, by and between Global Gold Corpanadind Drury Gallagher. (22)
Material Agreement — Debt cancetlatand restructuring with conversion rights. (23)

Material Agreement — October 27, @8igned agreement for the sale of Compania MiGdohal Gold Valdivia S.C.M.
company to Conventus Ltd. (24)

Material Contract — Global Gold Coration and Consolidated Resources USA, LLC Joemnture Agreement dated as of
March 17, 2011 (25)

Material Contract — Global Gold Coration and Consolidated Resources Joint Venturedgent dated as of April 27,
2011. (26)

Material Contract — December 2, 28Igned agreement for the sale of Compania MiGdohal Gold Valdivia S.C.M.
company to Conventus Ltd. and Amarant Mining LR¥)(

Written Consent of Shareholderkigu of Meeting Pursuant to Section 228(a) of then€&al Corporation Laws of the State
of Delaware. (28)

Material Agreement — Binding Terme®t — Convertible Note between Global Gold Codstéid Resources Limited and
Consolidated Resources Armenia and affiliates, @l@ld Corporation guarantor. (29)

Material Agreement — Shareholdegse®ment for GGCR dated February 18, 2012. (30)
Material Agreement — Supplementgtitér dated February 19, 2012. (31)

Material Agreement — Getik Assignmhand Assumption Agreement dated February 19, 2823
Material Agreement — MG Assignmantl Assumption Agreement dated February 19, 2@GR). (
Material Agreement — Guaranty defethruary 19, 2012 (by GGC to CRA). (34)

Material Agreement — Guaranty detethruary 19, 2012 (by GGCR Mining to CRA). (35)

Material Agreement — Security Agremnt dated February 19, 2012 (by GGCR and GGCRrigito CRA). (36)
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Exhibit 10.43

Exhibit 10.44

Exhibit 10.45

Exhibit 10.46

Exhibit 10.47

Exhibit 10.48

Exhibit 10.49

Exhibit 10.50

Exhibit 10.51

Exhibit 10.52

Exhibit 10.53

Exhibit 10.54

Exhibit 10.55

Exhibit 31.1

Exhibit 31.2

Exhibit 32.1

Material Agreement — Action by Ve Consent of the Sole Member of GGCR Mining, Ld&ted February 19, 2012. (37)
Material Agreement — Certificate@iobal Gold Corporation dated February 19, 2038) (

Global Gold Consolidated Resouldesited Registered Company No 109058 Written reohs by all of the directors of the
Company. (39)

Action by Written Consent of thedd of Managers of GGCR Mining, LLC. (40)
March 2, 2012 Order of the Arbitnat(41)

Partial Final Award issued by thbiator on March 29, 2012 in arbitration betwé&liobal Gold Corporation and Caldera
Resources, Inc. (42)

Material Agreement — Amended Jdfi@mbership Interest Purchase Agreement with Amavaning Ltd. (43)
Guarantee Letter from Contenderitep\B, dated April 13, 2012. (44)

Amended and Extended Employmenteg&grent, effective July 1, 2012, by and between &IGiwld Corporation and Van
Krikorian.

Amended and Extended Employmente&grent, effective July 1, 2012, by and between GGM;, and Ashot Boghossian.

Amended and Extended Employmenteg&grent, effective August 1, 2012, by and betweeb&IGold Corporation and Jan
Dulman.

Restricted Stock bonus award effecfiuly 1, 2012 to Van Krikorian.

Restricted Stock bonus award eifeciuly 1, 2012 to Jan Dulman.

Certification of Chief Executive @fér Pursuant to Rule 13a-14 (a) of the SarbandsyQ\ct of 2002.
Certification of Chief Financial @fér Pursuant to Rule 13a-14 (a) of the SarbandsyGAct of 2002.

Certification of the Chief Executi@ficer and Chief Financial Officer Pursuant tol&.C. Section 1350, as Adopted
Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-OxleyoA2002.
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Exhibit XBRL Instance

101.INS*

Exhibit XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema
101.SCH*

Exhibit XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation
101.CAL*

Exhibit XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition
101.DEF*

Exhibit XBRL Taxonomy Extension Labels
101.LAB*

Exhibit XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation
101.PRE*

(1) Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibitt®.the Company's annual report on 10-KSB for tharyended December 31, 2007 filed with
the SEC on March 31, 2008.

(2) Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibitt®.Zhe Company's annual report on 10-KSB for tharyended December 31, 2007 filed with
the SEC on March 31, 2008.

(3) Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit31#®. the Company's current report on Form 8-K fikdth the SEC on April 13, 2007.

(4) Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit31®. the Company's current report on Form 8-K fikdth the SEC on May 31, 2007.

(5) Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibitt®.the Company's current report on Form 8-K fildth the SEC on June 20, 2007.

(6) Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit1id. the Company's current report on Form 8-K fikdth the SEC on September 7, 2007.
(7) Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibi1i@d the Company's current report on Form 8-Kdfikdth the SEC on November 1, 2007.
(8) Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibi31i@. the Company's current report on Form 8-K filgth the SEC on October 22, 2008.
(9) Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibitlbto the Company’s annual report on Form 10-Kdfildth the SEC on April 15, 20009.
(10) Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibib1id the Company’s current report on Form 8-Kdileith the SEC on July 29, 2009.

(11) Incorporated herein by reference to ExhibitlOo the quarterly report on 10-Q for the secquarter ended June 30, 2009, filed with the
SEC on August 14, 2009.

(12) Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibitl1Qo the quarterly report on 10-Q for the secquarter ended June 30, 2009, filed with the
SEC on August 14, 2009.

(13) Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibitl2Qo the quarterly report on 10-Q for the secquarter ended June 30, 2009, filed with the
SEC on August 14, 2009.

36




(14) Incorporated herein by reference to ExhibitlBQto the quarterly report on 10-Q for the secqudrter ended June 30, 2009, filed with the
SEC on August 14, 2009.

(15) Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibi81{d the Company’s current report on Form 8-Kdileith the SEC on November 19, 2009.
(16) Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibi81td the Company’s current report on Form 8-Kdilgith the SEC on December 22, 2009.
(17) Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibi81td the Company’s current report on Form 8-Kdileith the SEC on March 2, 2010.

(18) Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibitd1td the Company’s current report on Form 8-Kdileith the SEC on March 2, 2010.

(19) Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibib1td the Company’s current report on Form 8-Kdileith the SEC on March 2, 2010.

(20) Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibid1td the Company’s current report on Form 8-Kdileith the SEC on March 25, 2010.
(21) Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibi81i0 the Company’s current report on Form 8-Kdileith the SEC on March 30, 2010.(

(22) Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibitl6o the quarterly report on 10-Q for the secqudrter ended June 30, 2010, filed with the
SEC on August 23, 2010.

(23) Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibi81i0 the Company’s current report on Form 8-Kdileith the SEC on October 22, 2010.
(24) Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibi81td the Company’s current report on Form 8-Kdilgith the SEC on November 1, 2010.
(25) Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibi81td the Company’s current report on Form 8-Kdilgith the SEC on March 21, 2011.
(26) Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibitdltd the Company's current report on Form 8-Kdfilgth the SEC on May 2, 2011.

(27) Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibi81td the Company's current report on Form 8-Kdfilgth the SEC on December 7, 2011.
(28) Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibi1id the Company's current report on Form 8-Kdfilgth the SEC on February 9, 2012.

(29) Incorporated herein by reference to ExhibiBbdo the Company's annual report on 10-K foryts@ ended December 31, 2011 filed with
the SEC on April 16, 2012.

(30) Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibi81i0 the Company's current report on Form 8-Kdfikdth the SEC on February 23, 2012.
(31) Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibidlid the Company's current report on Form 8-Kdfikdth the SEC on February 23, 2012.
(32) Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibib1id the Company's current report on Form 8-Kdfilgth the SEC on February 23, 2012.
(33) Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit1id the Company's current report on Form 8-kdfilgth the SEC on February 23, 2012.
(34) Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibi71ld the Company's current report on Form 8-Kdfilgth the SEC on February 23, 2012.

(35) Incorporated herein by reference to ExhibiB1i0 the Company's current report on Form 8-kdfilgth the SEC on February 23, 2012.
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(36) Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibi1id the Company's current report on Form 8-Kdfikdth the SEC on February 23, 2012.
(37) Incorporated herein by reference to ExhibitlDo the Company's current report on Form 8-&dfivith the SEC on February 23, 2012.
(38) Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibitl1dto the Company's current report on Form 8-&dfilvith the SEC on February 23, 2012.
(39) Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibitl2Qo the Company's current report on Form 8-&dfilvith the SEC on February 23, 2012.
(40) Incorporated herein by reference to ExhibitlBdto the Company's current report on Form 8-&dfilvith the SEC on February 23, 2012.
(41) Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibi81id the Company's current report on Form 8-Kdfilgth the SEC on March 2, 2012.

(42) Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibi81d the Company's current report on Form 8-Kdfilgth the SEC on March 29, 2012.
(43) Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibitla® the Company's current report on Form 8-kdfikdth the SEC on April 13, 2012.

(44) Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibi2a® the Company's current report on Form 8-kdfikdth the SEC on April 13, 2012.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xga Act of 1934, the registrant has duly causeddport to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

GLOBAL GOLD CORPORATION

Date: August 20, 2012 By: /s/ Van Z. Krikorian

Van Z. Krikorian
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)
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Exhibit 10.51

FOURTH AMENDMENT TO
FEBRUARY 1, 2003
GLOBAL GOLD CORPORATION — VAN Z. KRIKORIAN
EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

AMENDMENT, entered as of June 30, 2012 and effectis of the ¥ day of July, 2012, between Global Gold Corporata
Delaware corporation (the “Corporation”), and VankZikorian (the “Employee”)to the Employment Agreement, dated as of Februa03

as amended as of January 1, 2005, June 15, 2008umyust 11, 2009 (the “Agreement”), between thdipsr

WITNESSETH THAT:

WHEREAS, the Employee currently serves as Chairmath Chief Executive Officer, and the General Colnaed th
Corporation needs to retain the continued activeice of the Employee in light of the Corporatiergbligations, operations, development pl
and in light of other considerations;

WHEREAS, the Corporation and the Employee desienter into an amendment of the Agreement on ttmestand conditior
hereinafter set forth;

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties hereto agree as fotlows

1. EXTENSION OF TERM The term of the Agreement is hereby further eotésl until June 30, 2015 and Section 2 of the
Agreement is hereby amended effective July 1, 2008ad as follows:

“TERM . The term of this Agreement shall commence ore Jyr2003 and end on June 30, 2015, and shalltbenatically
renewed for consecutive one-year periods thereaftiess (a) terminated on the anniversary of Joney3ither party on 120
days written notice or (b) sooner terminated asmwtise provided herein.”




2. COMPENSATION The Corporation shall maintain the annual sugapke to the Employee as base compensation salary
under the Agreement to $225,000. In addition, Exygé is awarded as additional base compensatidhéderm as extended by this amendn
1,050,000 shares vesting in semi-annual installmgmbugh June 30, 2015, and pursuant to the teetrf®rth in the Restricted Stock Award
attached to this Amendment as Exhibit A. The fingt sentences of Section 3(a) of the Agreemenhareby amended effective July 1, 2012 to
read as follows:

“ Base CompensationIn consideration for the services rendered byBhployee under this Agreement, the Corporatioti sha
transfer and deliver to the Employee as base cogapien for the term of this Agreement as amendfst®fe July 1, 2009 a
total of 1,050,000 shares of its common stock pamsto the terms of the Restricted Stock Awardscatd hereto as Exhibit
and as set forth in such Awards (the “RestrictetiSAwards”) delivered to the Employee. In additto the foregoing, the
Company shall pay to the Employee, as base compemstne sum of $225,000 for each 12-month peca@thmencing on and
after July 1, 2012 during the term of this Agreetnes amended effective July 1, 2012, payable irmkoponthly installments

of $18,750 on the 18day of each month.”

3. SURVIVAL OF AGREEMENT. This Amendment is limited as specified above simall not constitute a modification or
waiver of any other provision of the Agreement gtaes required by terms agreed here. Except asfispdy amended by this Amendment, the
Agreement terms shall remain in full force and efffend all of its terms are hereby ratified andficored.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have executesdAmendment as of the date first above written.

GLOBAL GOLD CORPORATION

By:
Drury J. Gallagher, Secretary and Treasur Van Z. Krikorian




EXHIBIT A
Global Gold Corporation
555 Theodore Fremd Avenue
Rye, NY 10580
July 1, 2012

Mr. Van Krikorian

5 Frederick Court

Harrison, NY 10528

Re: Restricted Stock Award

Dear Mr. Krikorian:

As consideration for your employment agreementaragnded effective July 1, 2012, with Global Goldgwation (the “Corporation”)anc
as an inducement for your rendering of servioeth¢ Corporation, we hereby grant you One Millkifty Thousand (1,050,000) shares of
Common Stock of Global Gold Corporation, evidenbgda certificate of shares of our common stockQ$.par value per share (the "Share
subject to applicable securities law restrictiond the terms and conditions set forth herein:

1. For the first six month period commiegcJuly 1, 2012 within which you render the seegigrovided herein, yi
shall become fully vested in one sixth of the t@hhres granted hereunder. For the next six mmeribds thereafter commencing on Janua
2013 through June 30, 2015, you shall become fidsted in an additional one sixth of the total 8kayranted hereunder. Thus, if you com|
six, twelve, eighteen, twenty four, thirty and thilirty six months of service as provided hereungeu shall be vested in 175,000, 350,
525,000, 700,000, 875,000, and then 1,050,000e06ttares granted hereunder, respectively.

2. In the event of your termination ofugeemployment on or before the expiration of thitiah six month perio
commencing with the date hereof or any subsequemanth period thereafter during the thirty six mito period commencing with July 1, 2(
for any reason, you shall forfeit all right, tigd interest in and to any of the Shares granteguhder which have not become vested in
without any payment by the Company therefore untegtially agreed otherwise, except in the case@fiange in Control. All Shares shall \
upon the occurrence of a Change of Control (asddfherein) without further action by you or the@wation.




3. (a) Any Shares granted heden are not transferable and cannot be assignedggd, hypothecated
disposed of in any way until they become vested, may be transferred thereafter in accordance apttlicable securities law restrictions .
your shareholder agreement restrictions. Any gitethtransfer in violation of the Section shallmdl and void.

(b) Notwithstanding anything containedhis Agreement to the contrary, after you becom&ted in any of t
Shares granted hereunder, no sale, transfer ogelidetreof may be effected without an effectivastegtion statement or an opinion of coul
for the Corporation that such registration is ramjuired under the Securities Act of 1933, as amiraled any applicable state securities laws.

4. During the period commencing with tthete hereof and prior to your forfeiture of anytbé Shares grant
hereunder, you shall have all right, title and riegt in and to the Shares granted hereunder, imgjutie right to vote the Shares and rec
dividends or other distributions with respect there

5. You shall be solely responsible foy and all Federal, state and local income taxesrgriout of your receipt of tl
Shares and your future sale of other dispositiothein.

6. This Agreement and the rights of tlagtips hereunder shall be governed by and consfruadcordance with ti
laws of the State of New York, without regard ®dbnflicts of law principles. All parties hereid &gree that any legal suit, action or procee
arising out of or relating to this Agreement shadlinstituted only in a Federal or state courthia €ity of New York in the State of New Yo
(i) waive any objection which they may now or tefter have to the laying of the venue of any sugit, siction or proceeding, and (
irrevocably submit to the exclusive jurisdictionariy Federal or state court in the City of New Yorkhe State of New York, in any such <
action or proceeding, but such consent shall nostitoite a general appearance or be available yoo#drer person who is not a party to
Agreement. All parties hereto agree that the mgibf any process in any suit, action or proceedintpe addresses of the parties shown h
shall constitute personal service thereof.

7. If any provision of this Agreement BHze held invalid or unenforceable, such invaliditr unerfiorceability shal
attach only to such provision and shall not in angnner affect or render invalid or unenforceably ather severable provision of t
Agreement, and this Agreement shall be carriecasut any such invalid or unenforceable provisicarevnot contained herein.

8. This Agreement and all the terms araligions hereof shall be binding upon and shalfénto the benefit of tt
parties and their respective heirs and successdrsrathe case of the Corporation, its assigns.




9. This Agreement may not be amendedpXnea writing signed by all of the parties hereto

10. Nothing contained herein shall be awrest to create an employment agreement betwee@dhmoration and you
require the Corporation to employ or retain youemslich a contract or otherwise.

11. Notwithstanding anything contained thig\greement to the contrary the Shares shall imecfully vested upon yo
death or upon your becoming disabled, which sha&amyou shall have been unable to render all of gaties by reason of illness, injury
incapacity (whether physical or mental) for a pérad six consecutive months, determined by an irddpnt physician selected by the Boatr
Directors of the Corporation.

12. Notwithstanding anything contained tini Agreement to the contrary:

(a) the Shares shall become fully vestechupe occurrence of a Change of Control (as defingtis Sectio
12), which shall occur upon

0] (a) thirtyfive percent (35%) or more of the outstanding vptitock of the Corporation has b
acquired by any person (as defined by Section I9p)f the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, asraded) other than directly from t
Corporation; (b) there has been a merger or eqerivalombination involving the Corporation after athid9% or more of the voting stock of
surviving corporation is held by persons other tfammer shareholders of the Corporation; (c) twemgycent (20%) or more of the member
the Board elected by shareholders are persons vene mot nominated in the then most recent proxiestant of the Corporation; or (d)
Corporation sells or disposes of all or substatall of its assets.

(i) any “person’as such term is used in Section 13(d) and 14(dhefSecurities Exchange Act
1934, as amended (the “Exchange Adf)persons acting in concert (other than Drury dlldgher, Firebird Global Master Fund, Ltd., Vai
Krikorian or any of their affiliates) become theeftieficial owner” or “beneficial owners” (as definedRule 13d3 under the Exchange Act,
any successor rule or regulation thereto as inceffem time to time), directly or indirectly, oh¢ Corporatiors securities representing m
than 50% of the combined voting power of the Caaion’s then outstanding securities, pursuant to a plauch person or persons to acq
such controlling interest in the Corporation, whetlpursuant to a merger (including a merger in Wwhitce Corporation is the survivi
corporation), an acquisition of securities or ottiee; and

(b) A transaction shall not constitute a @& of Control if its sole purpose is to change skete of th
Corporation$ incorporation or to create a holding company thifitbe owned in substantially the same propowiday the persons who held
Corporation’s securities immediately before suamsaction.




(c) The Shares shall become fully vestechupmur death or upon your becoming disabled, wisicall mea
you shall have been unable to render all of youdiedwby reason of illness, injury or incapacity @tler physical or mental) for a period of
consecutive months, determined by an independessigan selected by the Board of Directors of tloegoration.

13. In the event of any conflict betwela terms of this Agreement andtbé Employment Agreement, the provisi
contained in this Agreement shall control.

If this letter accurately reflects our understagdiplease sign the enclosed copy of this lettéheabottom and return it to us.

Very truly yours,
Global Gold Corporation

By:
Drury J Gallagher, Secretary and Treasurer

Agreed:

Van Z. Krikorian



Exhibit 10.52

FOURTH AMENDMENT TO
AUGUST 1, 2003
GLOBAL GOLD — ASHOT BOGHOSSIAN
EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

AMENDMENT, dated as of the 30day of June, 2012, effective as of th&day of July 2009 between Global Gold Mining,
LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (the “Cqany”), and Ashot Boghossian (the “Employee”),ite Employment Agreement, dated as
of August 1, 2003 (the “Agreement”), amended adasfuary 1, 2006, as of June, 15 2006, and as afigidd., 2009 between the parties;

WITNESSETH THAT:

WHEREAS, the Employee currently serves as Direatut Regional Manager and the Company needs ta ibtaicontinued
active service of the Employee in light of the Camy's obligations, plans, and in light of other siglerations;

WHEREAS, the Company and the Employee desire terémto an amendment of the Agreement on the tamdsconditions
hereinafter set forth;

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties hereto agree as fotlows

1. EXTENSION OF TERM The term of the Agreement is hereby further eotésl until June 30, 2015 and Section 2 of the
Agreement is hereby amended to read as follows:

“TERM . The term of this Agreement shall commence onustid, 2003 (or such other date as mutually agogetie parties
and end on June 30, 2015, and shall be automgtieasiewed for consecutive one-year periods thexeafiless (a) terminated
on the anniversary of June 30 by either party dhd&ys written notice or (b) sooner terminatedthsmvise provided herein.”




2. COMPENSATION.Employee is awarded as additional base compensatRestricted Stock Award of 337,500 shares
vesting in six semi-annual installments throughel&@, 2015, and pursuant to the terms set forthdrRestricted Stock Award attached to this
Amendment, and an annual salary of $72,000. Tketfiro sentences of Section 3(a) of the Agreemenhareby amended to read as follows:

“ Base Compensationln consideration for the services rendered byBhwwloyee under this Agreement, Global Gold
Corporation shall transfer and deliver to the Emgplbas base compensation for the term of this Ageaéas amended
effective July 1, 2012 a total of 337,500 sharetsofommon stock pursuant to the terms of theriéstl Stock Awards
attached hereto as Exhibit A, and as set fortluagh Awards (the “Restricted Stock Awards”) delivete the Employee. In
addition to the foregoing, the Company shall paghenEmployee, as base compensation, the sum ¢d@F for each 12ronth
period commencing on and after July 1, 2009 duttgterm of this Agreement, as amended effectilye 2009, payable in
equal monthly installments of $6,000 on theMday of each month.”

3. SURVIVAL OF AGREEMENT. This Amendment is limited as specified above simall not constitute a modification or
waiver of any other provision of the Agreement gxtats required by terms agreed here. Except asfispdy amended by this Amendment, the
Agreement terms shall remain in full force and efffend all of its terms are hereby ratified andficored.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have executesdAmendment as of the date first above written.

GLOBAL GOLD MINING, LLC

By:
Van Z. Krikorian, Manager Ashot Boghossia




EXHIBIT A
Global Gold Corporation

555 Theodore Fremd Avenue
Rye, NY 10580

July 1, 2012
Mr. Ashot Boghossian
Global Gold Mining LLC
Yerevan, Armenia 375001

Restricted Stock Award

Dear Mr. Boghossian:

As an inducement for your continuing renderingafvges to Global Gold Mining LLC a subsidiary ofoBal Gold
Corporation (the “Corporation™) and pursuant to Jo@e 15, 2012 decisions of the Compensation Caeeniind Board of Directors of the
Corporation , we hereby grant you 337,500 shai@908 par value per share (the “Shares”), of them@on Stock of the Corporation, evidenced
by a certificate for such Shares, subject to applie securities law restrictions and the termsamdlitions set forth herein:

1. You shall be required to spend attl@&% of your business time in connection withriggponsibility assigned to you
(or to be assigned to you) in connection with thsibess of the Corporation pursuant to your Empkrytgreement with Global Gold Mining,
LLC.

2. For each six month period, commencinguly 1, 2012, you shall become fully veste86r250 Shares granted
hereunder. Thus, if you complete six, twelve, tagh, twenty four, thirty and then thirty six mosthf service as provided hereunder, you shall
be vested in 56,250, 112,500, 168,750, 225,0002881 and then 337,500 of the Shares granted haeeurespectively.

3. In the event of your termination oy employment on or before the expiration of thre¢ year period commencing
with July 1, 2012 you shall forfeit all right, #tland interest in and to any of the Shares grdmeslinder which have not become vested in you,
without any payment by the Corporation therefogept in the case of a Change in Control. All Skateall vest upon the occurrence of a
Change of Control (as defined herein) without fartaction by you or the Corporation.

4, (@) Any Shares granted hereurde not transferable and cannot be assignedtgdie hypothecated or dispo
in any way until they become vested, and may besfeared thereafter in accordance with applicabteisties law restrictions. Any attempted
transfer in violation of the Section shall be rarid void.




(b) Notwithstanding anything containedhis Agreement to the contrary, after you becoe&ed in any of the
Shares granted hereunder, no sale, transfer og@lbereof may be effected without an effectivastegtion statement or an opinion of counsel
for the Corporation that such registration is rasjuired under the Securities Act of 1933, as amiraled any applicable state securities laws.

5. During the period commencing with theéedlaereof and prior to your forfeiture of any oétBhares granted hereunt
you shall have all right, title and interest in dndhe Shares granted hereunder, including th# t@yvote the Shares and receive dividends or
other distributions with respect thereto.

6. You shall be solely responsible foy and all Federal, state and local incomes taxisig out of your receipt of the
Shares and your future sale of other dispositiothein.

7. This Agreement and the rights of thetipathereunder shall be governed by and construaddordance with the lav
of the State of New York, without regard to its flimts of law principles. All parties hereto (ijeee that any legal suit, action or proceeding
arising out of or relating to this Agreement shwlinstituted only in a Federal or state courhim €ity of New York in the State of New York,
(i) waive any objection which they may now or hedter have to the laying of the venue of any sugh action or proceeding, and (iii)
irrevocably submit to the exclusive jurisdictionasfy Federal or state court in the City of New Yirkhe State of New York, in any such suit,
action or proceeding, but such consent shall nostitite a general appearance or be availableytotner person who is not a party to this
Agreement. All parties hereto agree that ht emgitif any process in any suit, action or proceedinfpe addresses or the parties shown herein
shall constitute personal service thereof.

8. If any provision of the Agreementlsba held invalid or unenforceable, such invajdir unenforceability shall
attach only to such provision and shall not in aranner affect or render invalid or unenforceable @her severable provision of this

Agreement, and this Agreement shall be carriedasut any such invalid or unenforceable provisicarevnot contained herein.

9. This Agreement and all the terms pravisions hereof shall be binding upon and smallire to the benefit of the
parties and their respective heirs and successdrsrathe case of the Corporation, its assigns.

10. This Agreement may not be amendeg@xin a writing signed by all of the parties here

11. Nothing contained herein shall bestnued to create to create an employment agredmetneen the Corporation
and you or require the Corporation to employ oaireyou under such a contract or otherwise.




12. Notwithstanding anything containkid in Agreement to the contrary:

(a) the Shares shall become fully vesiwah the occurrence of a Change of Control (asieéfin this Section
12), which shall occur upon

0] (a) thirty-five percent (35%) or neoof the outstanding voting stock of the Corporatias been
acquired by any person (as defined by Section 8ja)f the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, asraiad) other than directly from the
Corporation; (b) there has been a merger or eqerivalombination involving the Corporation after ahi49% or more of the voting stock of the
surviving corporation is held by persons other tfmmer shareholders of the Corporation; (c) tweggycent (20%) or more of the members of
the Board elected by shareholders are persons whe not nominated in the then most recent proxgistant of the Corporation; or (d) the
Corporation sells or disposes of all or substagtall of its assets.

(ii) any “person”, as such term is uge®ection 13(d) and 14(d) of the Securities ExgjeaAct of
1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”) or persotisgam concert (other than Drury J. Gallaghergbird Global Master Fund, Ltd., Van Z.
Krikorian or any of their affiliates) become theefieficial owner” or “beneficial owners” (as definedRule 13d-3 under the Exchange Act, or
any successor rule or regulation thereto as irceffem time to time), directly or indirectly, ofi¢ Corporation’s securities representing more
than 50% of the combined voting power of the Coagion’s then outstanding securities, pursuantptaa of such person or persons to acquire
such controlling interest in the Corporation, whegthursuant to a merger (including a merger in Wil Corporation is the surviving
corporation), an acquisition of securities or otise; and

(b) A transaction shall not constitut€lzange of Control if its sole purpose is to chatigestate of the
Corporation’s incorporation or to create a holdognpany that will be owned in substantially the egroportions by the persons who held the
Corporation’s securities immediately before suemsaction.

(c) The Shares shall become fully vesigoin your death or upon your becoming disabledchvshall mean
you shall have been unable to render all of yotiediby reason of iliness, injury or incapacity @ther physical or mental) for a period of six
consecutive months, determined by an independsrsighn selected by the Board of Directors of tlweg@ration.

13. In the event of any conflict betwekea terms of this Agreement and of the Employrmfegreement, the provisions
contained in this Agreement shall control.




If this letter accurately reflects our understagdiplease sign the enclosed copy of this letténebottom and return it to us,
whereupon it shall become agreement binding upempétties.

Very truly yours,

Global Gold Corporation

By:
Van Krikorian, Chairman

Agreed:

Ashot Boghossian



Exhibit 10.53

SECOND AMENDMENT TO
FEBRUARY 1, 2003
GLOBAL GOLD CORPORATION — JAN DULMAN
EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

AMENDMENT, entered as of June 30, 2012 and effectis of the ' day of August, 2012, between Global Gold Corporg
a Delaware corporation (the “Corporation”), and Iariman (the “Employee”)to the Employment Agreement, dated as of June Q67 2a

amended as of August 11, 2009 (the “Agreementtyben the parties;

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the Company has employed the Employee hasf Einancial Officer and needs to retain the oorgd activ:
service of the Employee in light of the Corporatoobligation and in light of other considerations;

WHEREAS, the Corporation and the Employee desimenter into an amendment and extension of the Ageaé on the tern
and conditions hereinafter set forth;

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties hereto agree as fotlows

1. CHANGE IN TERM OF AGREEMENT The term of the Agreement is hereby hereby elddruntil July 31, 2015 and
Section 2 of the Agreement is hereby amended tbasdollows:

“TERM . The term of this Agreement, as amended effe&ivgust 1, 2012, shall commence on June 1, 200&addn July
31, 2015, and shall be automatically renewed foiseoutive one-year periods thereafter unless (ajnated by the Employee
on 120 days written notice prior to the expiratafrthe initial term hereof, (b) terminated by eitiparty on 120 days written
notice prior to the expiration of the second yeznelf or any year thereafter or (c) sooner termithats otherwise provided
herein.”




2. COMPENSATION The Corporation shall increase Employee's ansalalry to $165,000 per annum. In addition, Emedoy
is awarded as additional base compensation a Blesti$tock Award of 300,000 shares vesting in samudal installments through July 31,
2015, and pursuant to the terms set forth in thetriRéed Stock Award attached. Effective Augus2@12, Section 3(a) of the Agreement is
hereby amended to read as follows:

(a) “ Base Compensatiorin consideration for the services rendered byBimployee under this Agreement, as amended
effective August 1, 2012, the Company shall delieethe Employee as base compensation a totahoéeTHundred Thousand
shares of the common stock of Global Gold Corporggiursuant to the terms of the Restricted Stoclrvattached hereto as
Exhibit A (the “Restricted Stock Award”). In adiih to the foregoing, the Company shall pay toEngployee, as base
compensation, the sum of $165,000 for each 12-mpetiod commencing on and after August 1, 2012mduifie term of this
Agreement, payable in equal monthly installmentshen15" day of each month. In addition and pursuant tadéheision of

the Compensation Committee, Employee shall be adafthree Hundred Thousand (300,000) shares of constock of
Company vesting in semi annual installments throdigy 31, 2015 all in accordance with the ternd eonditions above.”

3. SURVIVAL OF AGREEMENT. This Amendment is limited as specified above simall not constitute a modification or
waiver of any other provision of the Agreement gtaes required by terms agreed here. Except asfispdy amended by this Amendment, the
Agreement terms shall remain in full force and efffend all of its terms are hereby ratified andficored.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have executesdAmendment as of the date first above written.

GLOBAL GOLD CORPORATION

By:
Van Z. Krikorian, Chairman and CE! Jan Dulmar




EXHIBIT A

Global Gold Corporation
555 Theodore Fremd Avenue
Rye, NY 10528

August 1, 2012
Mr. Jan Dulman
13 Hickory Place
Livingston, NJ 07039

Re: Restricted Stock Award

Dear Mr. Dulman:

As consideration for your employment agreement,aseended effective August 1, 2012, with Global Gd&drporation (th
“Corporation”) and as an inducement for your rendering of sesvitbo the Corporation, we hereby grant you Threadded Thousar
(300,000) shares of the Common Stock of Global @udporation, evidenced by a certificate of shafesur common stock, $.001 par value
share (the "Shares"), subject to applicable seestiaw restrictions and the terms and conditi@isath herein:

1. For the first six month period commiegcAugust 1, 2012 within which you render the $e#8 provided herein, y:
shall become fully vested in one sixth of the t@&hbres granted hereunder. For the next six nueribds thereafter commencing on Februa
2013 through July 31, 2015, you shall become fudlgted in an additional one sixth of the total 8sagranted hereunder. Thus, if you com|
six, twelve, eighteen, twenty four, thirty and thiirty six months of service as provided hereungeu shall be vested in 50,000, 100,
150,000, 200,000, 250,000, and then 300,000 obttaes granted hereunder, respectively.

2. In the event of your termination olly@mployment on or before the expiration of théahsix month period
commencing with the date hereof or any subsequemianth period thereafter during the thirty six mtto period commencing with August 1,
2012 for any reason, you shall forfeit all riglitietand interest in and to any of the Shares gihereunder which have not become vested in
you, without any payment by the Company therefaless mutually agreed otherwise, except in the chaeChange in Control. All Shares st
vest upon the occurrence of a Change of Contrali¢éised herein) without further action by you be tCorporation.




3. (a) Any Shares granted hedeu are not transferable and cannot be assigtesdtygrd, hypothecated or dispo
of in any way until they become vested, and mayrémesferred thereafter in accordance with appleakelcurities law restrictions. Any attemy
transfer in violation of the Section shall be ranid void.

(b) Notwithstanding anything containedhis Agreement to the contrary, after you becomsted in any of tt
Shares granted hereunder, no sale, transfer ogelidreof may be effected without an effectivastegtion statement or an opinion of coul
for the Corporation that such registration is remjuired under the Securities Act of 1933, as am@&raled any applicable state securities laws.

4, During the period commencing with ttege hereof and prior to your forfeiture of anytlud Shares granted hereun
you shall have all right, title and interest in aodthe Shares granted hereunder, including thH# tig vote the Shares and receive dividenc
other distributions with respect thereto.

5. You shall be solely responsible foy amd all Federal, state and local income taxesnagriout of your receipt of tl
Shares and your future sale of other dispositiothein.

6. This Agreement and the rights of thetips hereunder shall be governed by and construadcordance with the la
of the State of New York, without regard to its flimts of law principles. All parties hereto (i) s that any legal suit, action or procee
arising out of or relating to this Agreement shadl instituted only in a Federal or state courti@ City of New York in the State of New Yo
(i) waive any objection which they may now or tefter have to the laying of the venue of any suai, sction or proceeding, and (
irrevocably submit to the exclusive jurisdictionariy Federal or state court in the City of New Yorkhe State of New York, in any such <
action or proceeding, but such consent shall nostitoite a general appearance or be available yoo#drer person who is not a party to
Agreement. All parties hereto agree that the mgibf any process in any suit, action or proceedintpe addresses of the parties shown h
shall constitute personal service thereof.

7. If any provision of this Agreement BHze held invalid or unenforceable, such invajddar unerfiorceability shal
attach only to such provision and shall not in angnner affect or render invalid or unenforceablg ather severable provision of t

Agreement, and this Agreement shall be carriedasut any such invalid or unenforceable provisicrevnot contained herein.

8. This Agreement and all the terms amavigions hereof shall be binding upon and shalrénto the benefit of ti
parties and their respective heirs and successdrsrathe case of the Corporation, its assigns.

9. This Agreement may not be amendedpoea writing signed by all of the parties hereto




10. Nothing contained herein shall bestared to create an employment agreement betwee@drporation and you
require the Corporation to employ or retain youemslich a contract or otherwise.

11. Notwithstanding anything contained thisAigreement to the contrary the Shares shall bedwothevested upon yot
death or upon your becoming disabled, which sha&amyou shall have been unable to render all of gaties by reason of illness, injury
incapacity (whether physical or mental) for a perdd six consecutive months, determined by an ieddpnt physician selected by the Boar
Directors of the Corporation.

12. Notwithstanding anything containeig ih Agreement to the contrary:

(a) the Shares shall become fully vestazh the occurrence of a Change of Control (aseéefin this Section
12), which shall occur upon

0] (a) thirty-five percent (35%) or neoof the outstanding voting stock of the Corporatias been
acquired by any person (as defined by Section 8ja)f the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, asraiad) other than directly from the
Corporation; (b) there has been a merger or eqivalombination involving the Corporation after athid9% or more of the voting stock of the
surviving corporation is held by persons other tftmmer shareholders of the Corporation; (c) twepgycent (20%) or more of the members of
the Board elected by shareholders are persons eh® mot nominated in the then most recent proxgistant of the Corporation; or (d) the
Corporation sells or disposes of all or substagtall of its assets.

(ii) any “person”, as such term is uge&ection 13(d) and 14(d) of the Securities Exgeafct of
1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”) or persotisgam concert (other than Drury J. Gallaghergbird Global Master Fund, Ltd., Van Z.
Krikorian or any of their affiliates) become theefieficial owner” or “beneficial owners” (as definedRule 13d-3 under the Exchange Act, or
any successor rule or regulation thereto as irceffem time to time), directly or indirectly, ofi¢ Corporation’s securities representing more
than 50% of the combined voting power of the Coagion’s then outstanding securities, pursuantptaa of such person or persons to acquire
such controlling interest in the Corporation, whegthursuant to a merger (including a merger in titiee Corporation is the surviving
corporation), an acquisition of securities or ottiee; and

(b) A transaction shall not constitut€lzange of Control if its sole purpose is to chatigestate of the
Corporation’s incorporation or to create a holdamgnpany that will be owned in substantially the egoportions by the persons who held the
Corporation’s securities immediately before suamsaction.




(c) The Shares shall become fully vesigoin your death or upon your becoming disabledchvshall mean
you shall have been unable to render all of yotiediby reason of illness, injury or incapacity @ther physical or mental) for a period of six
consecutive months, determined by an independessigan selected by the Board of Directors of tloegoration.

13. In the event of any conflict betweba terms of this Agreement andthé Employment Agreement, the provisions conte
in this Agreement shall control.

If this letter accurately reflects our understagdiplease sign the enclosed copy of this letténebottom and return it to us.
Very truly yours,

Global Gold Corporation

By:
Van Krikorian, Chairman

Agreed:

Jan Dulman



Exhibit 10.54

Global Gold Corporation
555 Theodore Fremd Avenue
Rye, NY 10580

June 30, 2012
Mr. Van Krikorian
5 Frederick Court
Harrison, NY 10528

Re: Restricted Stock Award

Dear Mr. Krikorian:

As a bonus pursuant to your 2009 employment agreemith Global Gold Corporation (the “Corporationand as an inducement for y
continuing to render services to the Corporatioa,hgreby grant you Five Hundred Thousand (500,8h8)es of the Common Stock of Glc
Gold Corporation, evidenced by a certificate ofreBaof our common stock, $.001 par value per sfthe "Shares"), subject to applica
securities law restrictions and the terms and ¢ di set forth herein:

1. For the first six month period commiagcJuly 1, 2012 within which you render the seegiprovided herein, you st
become fully vested in one fourth of the total ®isagranted hereunder. For the next six month geribereafter commencing on Janual
2013 through June 30, 2014, you shall become fudlsted in an additional one fourth of the total f8kagranted hereunder. Thus, if
complete six, twelve, eighteen, and then twenty foonths of service as provided hereunder, you slealested in 125,000, 250,000, 375,!
and then 500,000 of the Shares granted hereuredgectively.

2. In the event of your termination ofuycemployment on or before the expiration of thiidah six month perio
commencing with the date hereof or any subsequrmhenth period thereafter during the twenty fouonth period commencing with July
2012 for any reason, you shall forfeit all rightietand interest in and to any of the Shares giiereunder which have not become vest
you, without any payment by the Company therefaress mutually agreed otherwise, except in the chaeChange in Control. All Shares sl
vest upon the occurrence of a Change of Contraliééised herein) without further action by you be tCorporation.

3. (a) Any Shares granted heden are not transferable and cannot be assigtefjgud, hypothecated or dispo
of in any way until they become vested, and maytrhesferred thereafter in accordance with applieasdcurities law restrictions and y
shareholder agreement restrictions. Any attemptatsfer in violation of the Section shall be rard void.




(b) Notwithstanding anything containedhis Agreement to the contrary, after you becom&ted in any of t
Shares granted hereunder, no sale, transfer ogelidereof may be effected without an effectivastegtion statement or an opinion of coul
for the Corporation that such registration is ramjuired under the Securities Act of 1933, as amiéraled any applicable state securities laws.

4. During the period commencing with tlege hereof and prior to your forfeiture of anyttid Shares granted hereun
you shall have all right, title and interest in aondthe Shares granted hereunder, including th# tavote the Shares and receive dividenc
other distributions with respect thereto.

5. You shall be solely responsible foy amd all Federal, state and local income taxesrayiout of your receipt of tl
Shares and your future sale of other dispositiothein.

6. This Agreement and the rights of thetips hereunder shall be governed by and construadcordance with the la
of the State of New York, without regard to its flimts of law principles. All parties hereto (i) ege that any legal suit, action or procee
arising out of or relating to this Agreement shadlinstituted only in a Federal or state courthia €ity of New York in the State of New Yo
(i) waive any objection which they may now or tefter have to the laying of the venue of any sugit, siction or proceeding, and (
irrevocably submit to the exclusive jurisdictionariy Federal or state court in the City of New Yorkhe State of New York, in any such ¢
action or proceeding, but such consent shall nostitoite a general appearance or be available yoo#trer person who is not a party to
Agreement. All parties hereto agree that the mgibf any process in any suit, action or proceedintpe addresses of the parties shown h
shall constitute personal service thereof.

7. If any provision of this Agreement BHze held invalid or unenforceable, such invalddr unerfiorceability shal
attach only to such provision and shall not in angnner affect or render invalid or unenforceably ather severable provision of t

Agreement, and this Agreement shall be carriedasut any such invalid or unenforceable provisicarevnot contained herein.

8. This Agreement and all the terms armalvigions hereof shall be binding upon and shalkrénto the benefit of t
parties and their respective heirs and successdisrathe case of the Corporation, its assigns.

9. This Agreement may not be amendedpoea writing signed by all of the parties hereto




10. Nothing contained herein shall be cwest to create an employment agreement betwee@dhgoration and you
require the Corporation to employ or retain youemslich a contract or otherwise.

11. Notwithstanding anything contained thisAgreement to the contrary the Shares shall inecfully vested upon yo
death or upon your becoming disabled, which sha&amyou shall have been unable to render all of gaties by reason of illness, injury
incapacity (whether physical or mental) for a pérad six consecutive months, determined by an irddpnt physician selected by the Boatr
Directors of the Corporation.

12. Notwithstanding anything contained thig\greement to the contrary:

(a) the Shares shall become fully vestechupe occurrence of a Change of Control (as defindtlis Sectio
12), which shall occur upon

0] (a) thirtyfive percent (35%) or more of the outstanding v@tstock of the Corporation has b
acquired by any person (as defined by Section I9p)f the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, asraded) other than directly from t
Corporation; (b) there has been a merger or eqerivalombination involving the Corporation after athid9% or more of the voting stock of
surviving corporation is held by persons other tfammer shareholders of the Corporation; (c) twemtycent (20%) or more of the member
the Board elected by shareholders are persons vene mot nominated in the then most recent proxtestant of the Corporation; or (d)
Corporation sells or disposes of all or substatall of its assets.

(ii) any “person”as such term is used in Section 13(d) and 14(dh@fSecurities Exchange Act
1934, as amended (the “Exchange Adf)persons acting in concert (other than Drury dlldgher, Firebird Global Master Fund, Ltd., Vai
Krikorian or any of their affiliates) become theeftieficial owner” or “beneficial owners” (as definedRule 13d3 under the Exchange Act,
any successor rule or regulation thereto as inceffem time to time), directly or indirectly, oh¢ Corporatiors securities representing m
than 50% of the combined voting power of the Caaion’s then outstanding securities, pursuant to a plauch person or persons to acq
such controlling interest in the Corporation, whetlpursuant to a merger (including a merger in Wwhitce Corporation is the survivi
corporation), an acquisition of securities or otise; and

(b) A transaction shall not constitute a @& of Control if its sole purpose is to change stete of th
Corporation$ incorporation or to create a holding company thifitbe owned in substantially the same propowiday the persons who held
Corporation’s securities immediately before suamsaction.

(c) The Shares shall become fully vestechupmur death or upon your becoming disabled, wisichll mea
you shall have been unable to render all of yodiedwy reason of illness, injury or incapacity @tirer physical or mental) for a period of
consecutive months, determined by an independsrsighn selected by the Board of Directors of tleeg@ration.




13. In the event of any conflict betweba terms of this Agreement andtbé Employment Agreement, the provisions conte
in this Agreement shall control.

If this letter accurately reflects our understaigdiplease sign the enclosed copy of this letténeabottom and return it to us.
Very truly yours,

Global Gold Corporation

By:
Drury J Gallagher, Secretary and Treasurer

Agreed:

Van Z. Krikorian
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Global Gold Corporation
555 Theodore Fremd Avenue
Rye, NY 10528

July 31, 2012
Mr. Jan Dulman

13 Hickory Place
Livingston, NJ 07039

Re: Restricted Stock Award

Dear Mr. Dulman:

As a bonus pursuant to your 2009 employment agreemigh Global Gold Corporation (the “Corporation’and as an inducem
for your continuing to render services to the Coagion, we hereby grant you Two Hundred Fifty Themc (250,000) shares of the Comr
Stock of Global Gold Corporation, evidenced by Hifieate of shares of our common stock, $.001yaue per share (the "Shares"), subje
applicable securities law restrictions and the teamd conditions set forth herein:

1. For the first six month period commiegcAugust 1, 2012 within which you render the a8 provided herein, yi
shall become fully vested in one fourth of the t&hares granted hereunder. For the next six mpatiods thereafter commencing on Febr
1, 2013 through July 31, 2014, you shall becomby fuksted in an additional one fourth of the tdBklares granted hereunder. Thus, if
complete six, twelve, eighteen, and then twenty foonths of service as provided hereunder, youl steavested in 62,500, 125,000, 187!
and then 250,000 of the Shares granted hereuredgectively.

2. In the event of your termination ofuycemployment on or before the expiration of thitidh six month perio
commencing with the date hereof or any subsequemianth period thereafter during the twenty fousnth period commencing with Augus
2012 for any reason, you shall forfeit all rightietand interest in and to any of the Shares giiereunder which have not become vest
you, without any payment by the Company therefaress mutually agreed otherwise, except in the chaeChange in Control. All Shares sl
vest upon the occurrence of a Change of Contraliééised herein) without further action by you be tCorporation.

3. (a) Any Shares granted heden are not transferable and cannot be assignedggd, hypothecated
disposed of in any way until they become vested,raay be transferred thereafter in accordance aptilicable securities law restrictions. /
attempted transfer in violation of the Section khalnull and void.




(b) Notwithstanding anything containedhis Agreement to the contrary, after you becom&ted in any of tf
Shares granted hereunder, no sale, transfer ogelidetreof may be effected without an effectivastegtion statement or an opinion of coul
for the Corporation that such registration is ramjuired under the Securities Act of 1933, as am&raled any applicable state securities laws.

4, During the period commencing with tthate hereof and prior to your forfeiture of anythé Shares grant
hereunder, you shall have all right, title and liegt in and to the Shares granted hereunder, imgjutie right to vote the Shares and rec
dividends or other distributions with respect there

5. You shall be solely responsible foy and all Federal, state and local income taxesrgriout of your receipt of tl
Shares and your future sale of other dispositiothein.

6. This Agreement and the rights of tlagtips hereunder shall be governed by and consfruadcordance with ti
laws of the State of New York, without regard ®dbnflicts of law principles. All parties hereid &gree that any legal suit, action or procee
arising out of or relating to this Agreement shmdl instituted only in a Federal or state courti@ City of New York in the State of New Yo
(i) waive any objection which they may now or tefter have to the laying of the venue of any suai, siction or proceeding, and (
irrevocably submit to the exclusive jurisdictionariy Federal or state court in the City of New Yorkhe State of New York, in any such <
action or proceeding, but such consent shall nostitoite a general appearance or be available yoo#drer person who is not a party to
Agreement. All parties hereto agree that the mgibf any process in any suit, action or proceedintpe addresses of the parties shown h
shall constitute personal service thereof.

7. If any provision of this Agreement BHze held invalid or unenforceable, such invaliditr unerfiorceability shal
attach only to such provision and shall not in angnner affect or render invalid or unenforceably ather severable provision of t

Agreement, and this Agreement shall be carriedasut any such invalid or unenforceable provisicrevnot contained herein.

8. This Agreement and all the terms araligions hereof shall be binding upon and shalfénto the benefit of tt
parties and their respective heirs and successdrsrathe case of the Corporation, its assigns.

9. This Agreement may not be amendedpxnea writing signed by all of the parties hereto




10. Nothing contained herein shall be awrest to create an employment agreement betwee@dhmration and you
require the Corporation to employ or retain youemslich a contract or otherwise.

11. Notwithstanding anything contained thig\greement to the contrary the Shares shall imecfully vested upon yo
death or upon your becoming disabled, which sha&myou shall have been unable to render all of gaties by reason of illness, injury
incapacity (whether physical or mental) for a perdd six consecutive months, determined by an ieddpnt physician selected by the Boar
Directors of the Corporation.

12. Notwithstanding anything contained tini Agreement to the contrary:

(a) the Shares shall become fully vestechupe occurrence of a Change of Control (as defingtis Sectio
12), which shall occur upon

0] (a) thirtyfive percent (35%) or more of the outstanding vptatock of the Corporation has b
acquired by any person (as defined by Section Y9Qpn)pf the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as rated) other than directly from t
Corporation; (b) there has been a merger or eqerivalombination involving the Corporation after athi49% or more of the voting stock of
surviving corporation is held by persons other tfmmer shareholders of the Corporation; (c) twgmycent (20%) or more of the member
the Board elected by shareholders are persons vene mot nominated in the then most recent proxiestant of the Corporation; or (d)
Corporation sells or disposes of all or substagtall of its assets.

(i) any “person’as such term is used in Section 13(d) and 14(dhefSecurities Exchange Act
1934, as amended (the “Exchange Adf)persons acting in concert (other than Drury dlldgher, Firebird Global Master Fund, Ltd., Vai
Krikorian or any of their affiliates) become theefieficial owner” or “beneficial owners” (as definedRule 13d3 under the Exchange Act,
any successor rule or regulation thereto as inceffem time to time), directly or indirectly, oh¢ Corporatiors securities representing m
than 50% of the combined voting power of the Caaion’s then outstanding securities, pursuant to a plauch person or persons to acq
such controlling interest in the Corporation, wheetlpursuant to a merger (including a merger in tvhice Corporation is the survivi
corporation), an acquisition of securities or ottiee; and

(b) A transaction shall not constitute a @& of Control if its sole purpose is to change skete of th
Corporation$ incorporation or to create a holding company thifitbe owned in substantially the same propowiday the persons who held
Corporation’s securities immediately before suamsaction.

(c) The Shares shall become fully vestedhuwmmur death or upon your becoming disabled, wisicall mea
you shall have been unable to render all of youiedwby reason of illness, injury or incapacity @tler physical or mental) for a period of
consecutive months, determined by an independessigan selected by the Board of Directors of tloegoration.




13. In the event of any conflict betweba terms of this Agreement andtbhé Employment Agreement, the provisions conte
in this Agreement shall control.

If this letter accurately reflects our understagdiplease sign the enclosed copy of this lettéheabottom and return it to us.

Very truly yours,
Global Gold Corporation

By:

Van Krikorian, Chairman

Agreed:

Jan Dulman



Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATIONS
I, Van Z. Krikorian, certify that:
1) I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on ForraQ.6f Global Gold Corporation for the period endede 30, 2012;

2) Based on my knowledge, this Quarterly Reporsdu contain any untrue statement of a mater@ldaomit to state a material fact neces
to make the statements made, in light of the cistances under which such statements were madmisletading with respect to the period
covered by this Quarterly Report;

3) Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtd,other financial information included in this@terly Report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resoftsperations and cash flows of the registrantfaaral for, the periods presented in this Quar
Report;

4) The registrant's other certifying officers araré responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) ardiriat control over financial reporting (as definedExchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15
(d)-15(b)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresused such disclosure controls and procedores designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to thgistrant, including its consolidated subsidiarisanade known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in whidtig Quarterly Report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financiglaing, or caused such internal control over feiahreporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rieggifte reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepteduatiog principles.

c¢) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registratisslosure controls and procedures and presentiisiQuarterly Report our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls amdguures, as of the end of the period coveredibyQbarterly Report based on such evaluation;
and

d) Disclosed in this Quarterly Report any changthéregistrant's internal control over financigporting that occurred during the registrant's
most recent fiscal quarter that has materiallycéf@, or is reasonably likely to materially affettie registrant's internal control over financial
reporting.

5) The registrant's other certifying officers artthve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuatimternal control over financial reporting,
the registrant's auditors and the audit commitfeéberegistrant's board of directors (or persoedquming the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal coravelr financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the registrant's abiliéyrecord, process, summarize and report finamtiafmation; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invalveanagement or other employees who have a sigmiffole in the registrant's internal control
over financial reporting.

Date: August 20, 2012 /sl Van Z. Krikorian
Van. Z. Krikorian
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)




Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATIONS
I, Jan E. Dulman, certify that:
1) | have reviewed this Quarterly Report on ForraQ6f Global Gold Corporation for the quarter endede 30, 2012;

2) Based on my knowledge, this Quarterly Reporsdu contain any untrue statement of a mater@ldaomit to state a material fact neces
to make the statements made, in light of the cistances under which such statements were madmisletading with respect to the period
covered by this Quarterly Report;

3) Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtd,other financial information included in this@terly Report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resoftsperations and cash flows of the registrantfaaral for, the periods presented in this Quar
Report;

4) The registrant's other certifying officers araré responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) ardiriat control over financial reporting (as definedExchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15
(d)-15(b)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresused such disclosure controls and procedores designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to thgistrant, including its consolidated subsidiarisanade known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in whidtig Quarterly Report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financiglaing, or caused such internal control over feiahreporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rieggifte reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepteduatiog principles.

c¢) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registratisslosure controls and procedures and presentiisiQuarterly Report our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls amdguures, as of the end of the period coveredibyQbarterly Report based on such evaluation;
and

d) Disclosed in this Quarterly Report any changthéregistrant's internal control over financigporting that occurred during the registrant's
most recent fiscal quarter that has materiallycéf@, or is reasonably likely to materially affettie registrant's internal control over financial
reporting.

5) The registrant's other certifying officers artthve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuatimternal control over financial reporting,
the registrant's auditors and the audit commitfeéberegistrant's board of directors (or persoedquming the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal coravelr financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the registrant's abiliéyrecord, process, summarize and report finamtiafmation; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invalveanagement or other employees who have a sigmiffole in the registrant's internal control
over financial reporting.

Date: August 20, 2012 /s/ Jan E. Dulman
Jan E. Dulman
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Accounting Officer)




Exhibit 32.1
CERTIFICATION OF PERIODIC REPORT

Each of the undersigned, in his capacity as aceafiof Global Gold Corporation (the "Company”), dlgy certifies, pursuant to Section 906 of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (18 U.S.C. 135@jt: th

(1) the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of the Conypfam the three months ended June 30, 2012 fuligplaes with the requirements of Section
13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act 841015 U.S.C. 78m or 780(d)); and

(2) the information contained in the Report faplgsents, in all material respects, the finan@aldition and results of operations of the
Company.

Date: August 20, 2012 /sl Van Z. Krikorian
Van Z. Krikorian
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

Date: August 20, 2012 /s/ Jan E. Dulman
Jan E. Dulman
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Accounting Officer)

A signed original of this written statement reqdit®y Section 906 has been provided to the Compadyll be retained by the Company and
furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commissidts staff upon request.



